
Legal & Governance Reform
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
HeadHead  ofof  LegalLegal  andand  GovernanceGovernance  ReformReform

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Rochdale Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Michael Garraway
Telephone: 01706 924716
Date: 8th September 2015

Dear Councillor

Rochdale Township Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Rochdale Township Committee to 
be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Wednesday, 16th September 2015 
commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputies or staff in the 
Governance and Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Head of Legal and Governance Reform

Rochdale Township Committee Membership 2015/16
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Shefali Farooq Ahmed
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Surinder Biant
Councillor Lynne Brosnan
Councillor Ian Duckworth
Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Jane Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Michael  Holly



Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Terry Linden
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman



Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

16th September 2015 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Budget Presentation 

3.  Open Forum (6.15-6.45pm) 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

4.  Minutes 4 - 8

- To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 22nd July 
2015.

5.  Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub-Committee 9 - 11

- To note the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action & 
Resources Sub-Committee held on 14th July 2015.

6.  Savings Proposals 2016-2017, 2017-2018 12 - 18

7.  Disposal of Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift 
Road, Rochdale 

19 - 25



8.  Neighbourhood Planning - Application for a Neighbourhood 
Area & Forum 

26 - 57

9.  TBA site update 58 - 67

10.  Armed Forces 68 - 87

11.  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended.

12.  Misuse of Allotment Sites 88 - 96

13.  Smith Street Experimental Closure Order 97 - 110





DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
22nd July 2015 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Chair); Councillors Ahmed, 
Shefali Farooq Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, 
Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, Brosnan, Duckworth, James Gartside, Jane Gartside, 
Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Linden, Meredith, Nickson, Rashid, Sheerin, Wazir, Zaheer 
and Zaman 
 
OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), V. Crossland (Finance Services), C. 
Swift (Children’s Services), D. Bowler, V. White, P. White and I. Rogers (Economy & 
Environment Service) and M. Garraway (Customer & Corporate Services).  
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  six members of public. 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Farnell, Councillor Sullivan and Councillor 
Winkler. 
 
AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND ADDITIONAL ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
17 The Chair advised the Committee that agenda item 4 – Presentation of 
Budget 2016/17 to 2018/19 Guidelines and Timetable – had been withdrawn from the 
agenda and the item would be considered at the next meeting of the Township 
Committee. 
 
The Chair advised the Committee that three additional items of business would be 
accepted onto the agenda on the grounds of urgency, namely an update from 
Greater Manchester Police, on the grounds that the update was relevant to existing 
issues and the information was required by Members now to enable strategically joint 
approaches to those issue; an item to consider excluding the press and public for the 
consideration of the third item for the disposal of land adjacent to 69-71 Whitworth 
Road, Rochdale, on the grounds that the proposed sale may be effected should a 
decision not be reached at this meeting of the Committee.  
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
18 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE UPDATE 
19 Sergeant P. Cannon, PC’s S. Rodgers and B. Walsh (Greater Manchester 
Police) updated the Township Committee on activities and initiatives that were 
undertaken by Greater Manchester Police in the Rochdale Township Division, in 
partnership with the Council’s Community Safety Team. 
 
Particular reference was made to efforts and initiatives to counter street begging, 
burglaries and anti-social behaviour. The Police had achieved some significant 
successes in this regard and though there had been an increase in the number of 
burglaries across the Township which was, in part, attributed to a return to the area 
of certain individuals from incarceration.   
 
A specific operation had been undertaken around Stoneyfield park following 
concerns expressed by members of the public which had resulted in an engagement 
exercise being undertaken with local youths and other groups.  
 

Public Document Pack



The Committee were informed of measures that the Police had executed drugs 
warrants following the discovery of cannabis farms within the Township. 
 
Members discussed the presentation in detail, generally welcoming the reduction in 
serious crime across the Township during the three month period that was covered. .  
  
DECIDED – That the Greater Manchester Police update be noted and 
welcomed. 
 
MINUTES 
20 Further to minute 5(c) of the meeting held on 27th May 2015, the Chair 
requested a report on the current position of the former TBA site be brought to the 
next meeting of the Committee.   
 
Further to minute 6 of the meeting held on 27th May 2015, referring to minute 83 (a) 
of the meeting held on 4th March 2015, the Chair informed the Committee site visit 
would take place prior to the next meeting and a further update would be provided. 
 
DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th May 2015 be approved 
as a correct record.   
 
OPEN FORUM 
21 The following matters were raised during the open forum: 
 
a) Medina Cash and Carry cash machine 
Mr Sohail Ahmad informed the Committee he believed the recently installed cash and 
carry to the side of Medina Cash and Carry on Tweedale Street did not have 
planning permission; and raised questions around cars parking on yellow lines at the 
site. 
 
The Chief Planning Officer advised he would investigate and inform the Committee 
and Mr S. Ahmad accordingly. 
 
b) Stoneyfield Park 
Mr Sohail Ahmad requested increased Youth Service activities be undertaken at the 
park. 
 
c) Speakers Corner 
Mr Khan addressed the Committee requesting the establishment of a speaker’s 
corner in Rochdale Town Centre.   
 
The Chair requested this be passed to the Director for Economy and Environment for 
further consideration. 
 
d) Heritage Assets 
Further to minute 9 of the meeting held on 27th May 2015 Mr Faulkner raised 
objections to the future sale of Heritage assets within the Township and raised 
concerns over the Committees decision in relation to Partnership House. 
 
Members of the Committee advised Mr Faulkner that Partnership House had been 
discussed in various forums through which they had received assurances over 
concerns he was now raising.     
 
 
 



BUDGET 2016/17 TO 2018/19 GUIDELINES AND TIMETABLE 
22 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of Finance 
which provided details of the budget guidelines and timetable to be used in preparing 
the detailed 2016/17 budget and provisional budgets for 2017/18 and 2018/19.  
 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting process 
is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally important that 
assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, reasonable and 
consistently applied by all services. 
 
The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of 
expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. The budget assumptions at this 
stage of the process are based on intelligence received from a number of sources 
including proposals made locally. Final confirmation of these assumptions will not be 
received/finalised until November/December this year.  There are a number of areas 
of the Council’s budget where risks to the projections contained in this report have 
been identified. 
 
A Member sought assurance that inflationary provision was included within all 
contractual arrangements entered into by the Council.   
 
DECIDED – that the budget 2016/17 to 2018/19 guidelines and timetable be 
noted. 
 
THE NEED FOR EXTRA SPECIAL SCHOOL PLACES- CONSIDERATION OF 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES AND PUBLICATION OF STATUTORY 
PROPOSALS 
23 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of Children’s 
Services which sought the views of the Committee on the statutory proposals for the 
provision of extra places at Redwood Special School, Newlands Special School and 
Springside Special School. 
 
The recommendations were put forward as there has been an increase in the 
number of children born in the Borough, and this will reflect an increase in demand 
for special school places, as it has for mainstream school places. At the same time 
Redwood Secondary Special School has seen an increase in the number of children 
with statements transferring from mainstream settings into Year 7 and also an 
increase in demand from children joining the school at Year 12. 
 
Members of the Committee thanked the School Planning and Organisation Manager 
and his staff for all their work on this matter and the way in which the report had been 
compiled. 
 
DECIDED – that the proposals to enlarge and provide additional places at 
Redwood Special School, Newlands Special School and Springside Special 
School as detailed within the submitted report be supported. 
 
THE NEED FOR EXTRA RECEPTION CLASS PLACES 2015-2018 
24 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of Children’s 
Services which informed the Committee that there was a need to keep under review 
the need for extra Reception class places in each Township from September 2016 to 
September 2018. The purpose of this report was to present an update on the current 
admission position for September 2015 and to put forward proposals to address the 
need for any further extra Reception Class places up to September 2018. 
 



The recommendations were put forward as in recent years there has been a 
continuing increase in the number of children born across the Borough, who in turn 
will want Reception Class places. Data presented in the report at Borough and 
Township level shows there are different demand pressures in each Township, and 
that provisional data indicates that there is a decrease in the number of children born 
for admission to primary school in September 2018. 
 
DECIDED –  that the strategy and proposals to meet any expected increase in 
demand for Reception Class places in the period to September 2018 as detailed 
within the submitted report be supported. 
 
KEY ROUTE NETWORK 
25 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of Economy 
and Environment which informed the Committee about of the decision of the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for the introduction of a Key Route Network 
(KRN) on strategic integrated highways across Greater Manchester and to advise 
members of the management arrangements, in partnership with Transport for 
Greater Manchester (TfGM) for introducing a Greater Manchester KRN, which will be 
managed and funded centrally forming highway corridors and routes across Greater 
Manchester that will support the Greater Manchester Strategy and enable growth.. 
 
DECIDED – that the decision of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority to 
introduce a Key Route Network be noted. 
 
DISPOSAL OF LAND AT HAMER LANE, ROCHDALE 
26 The Township Committee considered a report from the Director for Economy 
and Environment seeking approval for the release of the land at Hamer Lane, 
Rochdale.   
  
The Committee were informed that it had been agreed in principle with the adjacent 
business that they will purchase the land for car parking for use in connection with 
their business and that the purchaser would pay the market value for the plot of land.   
 
Alternatives considered: To retain the site in its current use though this would not 
secure a capital receipt, nor reduce the Council’s financial and/or environmental 
liabilities. 
 
DECIDED – That (1) the land is released for disposal; 

(2) the Head of Legal & Governance Reform be authorised to carry out 
the legal work in connection with the disposal; 

(3) the Purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs. 
 
DISPOSAL OF LANE AT WELLINGTON PLACE AND RAMSAY STREET, 
ROCHDALE 
27 The Township Committee considered a report from the Director for Economy 
and Environment seeking approval for the release of the land at Wellington Place 
and Ramsay Street, Rochdale. 
 
The Committee were informed that land was formerly the site of 51-59 Ramsay 
Street. The properties were acquired as part of the Housing Market Renewal 
Programme and have since been demolished. The current nature of the site is an un-
grassed open area and the site was no longer required as part of the Housing Market 
Renewal programme and it has been agreed in principle that the site should be 
offered for sale to the adjacent business for car parking in association with the 
business. The purchaser will pay market value for this site. 



 
Alternatives considered: To retain the site in its current use though this would not 
secure a capital receipt, nor reduce the Council’s financial and/or environmental 
liabilities. 
 
DECIDED – That (1) the land is released for disposal; 

(2) the Head of Legal & Governance Reform be authorised to carry out 
the legal work in connection with the disposal; 

(3) the Purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs. 
 
 
TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2015-16 
28 The Township Committee considered the report of the Interim Head of 
Customers and Corporate Services that provide Members with details of work 
undertaken in the context of the Townships Plan during 2014/15 and to ask Members 
to approve the Townships Plan for 2015/16 and to inform Members of schemes and 
projects, funded and coordinated by Townships, in response to the priorities 
identified in the Townships Plan. 
 
The Townships Plan includes strategies and objectives identified to meet the 
priorities identified by each Township. It also guides and directs the use of devolved 
budgets including the Township Funds for the financial year 2015/16. Members 
approved the Townships Plan for 2015/16 in March 2014. Members received an 
update on progress with the plan in January 2015. 
 
DECIDED – that the progress and achievements during 2014/15 in response to 
priorities identified in the Townships Plan for that period be noted. 
 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
29 DECIDED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business since it is likely, that in view of 
the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to them 
of exempt information, namely information relating to the business or financial 
affairs of any particular person (including the person holding that information). 
 
LAND ADJACENT TO 69-71 WHITWORTH ROAD, ROCHDALE 
30 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director for Economy 
and Environment seeking approval for the disposal of a parcel of land adjacent to 69-
71 Whitworth Road, Rochdale by way of a lease for a term of 836 years to the 
occupier of 69-71 Whitworth Road. 
 
Alternatives considered: Members considered putting the site into auction as a 
freehold, rather than leasehold, with the drawback that the Council would have 
considerably less control over future development of the site. Members were 
informed the Council could retain the site though there would be costs in relation to 
maintenance of the land and financial liability for any act that may occur on the land. 
 
DECIDED – That (1) 69-71 Whitworth Road, Rochdale be released by way of a 
lease for a term of 836 years to the occupier of 69-71 Whitworth Road; 

(2) the Head of Legal Services be requested to carry out the legal work 
in connection with the disposal;  

(3) the Purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs. 



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES SUB COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 14 July 2015 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Shakil Ahmed (In the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Cecile 
Biant, Jane Gartside, Heakin, Nickson, Sheerin, Sullivan and Zaman 
 
OFFICERS: A Collins (Economy and Environment Directorate), K Moore and C 
Denyer (Customers and Corporate Directorate)  
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors James Gartside, O’Neill and Zaheer and 
approximately 9 members of the public 
 
ADDITIONAL ITEMS OF BUSINSS 
18 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 25.1, the Chair indicated that 
there were additional items of business to be considered (agenda item 8 – Rochdale 
Township Funds 2015/16), namely the applications for funding for the Margaret 
Avenue non-mandatory gyratory improvement, the Milkstone Road, Tweeddale 
Street and Station Road Waiting Restrictions and the Manchester Road (old) waiting 
restrictions removal schemes. The grounds for urgency were that the Sub-Committee 
were required to make a determination thereon prior to the next scheduled meeting 
of the Sub-Committee. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
19 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
MINUTES 
20 DECIDED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 16th June 2015 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 
BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT COMMUNITY MEETING 
21 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Balderstone and Kirkholt 
Community Meetings held 2nd June 2015 be noted.  
 
BAMFORD AND OAKENROD AREA FORUM 
22 DECIDED –that the minutes of meeting of Bamford and Oakenrod Area 
Forum held on 8th June 2015 be noted 
 
BRIMROD, MARLAND AND SUDDEN AREA FORUM 
23 DECIDED –that the minutes of the meeting of the Brimrod, Marland and 
Sudden Area Forum held on 18th June 2015 be noted. 
 
KINGSWAY AREA FORUM 
24 DECIDED –that the Minutes of meeting of the Kingsway Area Forum held 
on 4th June 2015 be noted. 
 
SPARTH AREA FORUM 
25 DECIDED – that the minutes of meeting of the Sparth Area Forum held 
on 17th June 2015 be noted 
 
ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2015/16 
26 The Interim Head of Customers and Corporate Services presented a report 
which updated the Sub-Committee on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 

Public Document Pack



and balances of Rochdale Township Fund 2015/2016, to enable the Sub-Committee 
to allocate funds to proposed projects. 
 
The recommendations contained in the report were presented as the management of 
the Rochdale Township Fund was a function delegated to this Sub-Committee to 
determine. The Rochdale Township Funds were designed to be allocated to projects 
that benefit the Township’s communities and environment and which realise the 
Township’s stated priorities. The Sub-Committee monitors and reviews the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the 
Township’s Funds. 
 
The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments, balances 
and decisions made under delegated authority for the 2015/2016 in Appendix 1, 2. 
Members were asked to note the decisions made under delegated authority as 
detailed in Appendix 3 and to consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of 
funds to proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.  
 
Members of the Rochdale Township Action and Resource Sub-Committee were 
requested to note the Principal Townships Officer’s assessment of the proposed 
projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale 
Township Fund, priorities of the Township and any specific risks identified.  
 
Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to decide 
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes as appropriate. 
 
The Committee considered the views of Mr M Nazir, a Mansfield Road resident who 
addressed the Committee in relation to application TC/01/15 for the provision parking 
on the grassed area at Mansfield Road, Rochdale. 
 
The Committee considered the views of Mr S Lord, the Chair of St Clement’s Football 
Club who addressed the Committee in relation to application TC/05/15 for the 
improvements required to the Club’s changing facilities. 
 
The Committee considered the views of Mrs S Dolan, who addressed the Committee 
in relation to the application RP/ 07/15 for the removal of Waiting Restrictions at 
Manchester Road (old).  
 
DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township Revenue and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the 
submitted report be noted; 
            (2) the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed at 
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted; 
            (3) it be noted that the Principal Township Officer had assessed the 
proposed projects to be considered for funding, against the criteria of the 
Rochdale Township Fund, priorities of the Township Plan and any specific 
risks had been identified, (as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report); 
 (4) the Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair, Vice 
Chair and opposition spokespersons of the Committee, be given delegated 
authority to make decisions on any deferred projects 
           (5) applications for Township Funds, (as outlined in appendix 4 of the 
submitted report); and as, verbally updated by the Township Management 
Officer, be dealt with as follows:- 
a) TC/01/15 -  the Mansfield Road Parking Provision scheme be deferred for 
the following actions to be completed to include those previously agreed at the 



meeting of the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee held 
on 2nd December 2014 with regard to application reference TC/09/14:- 
(i) further consultation with all the affected residents and Rochdale Borough-
wide housing with regard to the residents requirements for the provision of 
additional parking spaces  
(ii) details of options and costings including grasscrete  
(iii) the details of land ownership to be obtained.  
b) TC/02/15 - approve an allocation of £50,000 for the conversion of the Sandy 
Lane Pelican Crossing to a new Puffin Crossing.  
c) TC/05/15 - approve an allocation of £3,500 for the Milnrow Road Waiting 
Bays scheme. 
d) TC/15/15 - approve an allocation of £32.000 for the St Clement's FC 
Changing Rooms scheme 
e) TC/16/15 - approve an allocation of £1,350 for the Margaret Avenue Non-
mandatory Gyratory Improvement scheme 
f)  TC/17/15 - approve an allocation of £4,500 for the Milkstone Road, 
Tweedale Street and Station Road Waiting Restrictions revision scheme 
g) RP/07/15 - the Manchester Road (Old) Waiting Restrictions Removal be 
deferred for the following:- 
(i) a survey of the current waiting restrictions and the amendments requested 
by the residents; 
(ii) the Castle Hill Crescent /Manchester Road and Sparth Bottoms Road, 
Rochdale -  Traffic Regulation Order report approved at the meeting of 
Rochdale Township Committee held on 6th July 2011 to be circulated to the 
Members of this Committee and; 
(iii) the costing of the survey to be delegated to the Principal Townships 
Officer, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition 
spokespersons of the Committee. 
 
Eligible for Call In - Yes 
 
 



 

Subject: Savings Programme 2016/17 and
                     2017/18

Status: For Publication

Report to: Heywood Township
                     Pennines Township
                     Rochdale Township
                     Middleton Township

Cabinet Member: Portfolio Holder for Finance

Date:         14th September  2015
15th September  2015

                  16th September  2015
                  17th September  2015

 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:  vicky.crossland@rochdale.gov.uk
                               Pauline.kane@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Pauline Kane / Vicky Crossland

Tel: 01706925409/5002

Comments from Statutory Officers: Yes

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1. To inform Township Committee of the saving proposals for 2016/17and 2017/18 which 
have service delivery implications and to seek comments as part of the public 
consultation process. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. It is recommended that:

2.1.1 The Township Committee notes the report and provides its view on the saving 
proposals as part of the consultation process.

3 MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ CONSULTATION 
CARRIED OUT

3.1 Alternatives and Risks considered:

3.1.1 Consideration has been given to all options in putting forward these proposals and the 
report outlines any alternatives. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as the 
Council is required to set a lawful budget.

3.2 Consultation Undertaken/Proposed:

3.2.1 Consultation is to be undertaken with staff, local residents and council tax payers, 
stakeholder groups and where appropriate service users. It is proposed to have 2 
groups of Saving Proposals where consultation is to be undertaken. Group 1 proposals 
commenced on the 8th September.  Consultation with the public on Group 1 proposals 
for changes to service delivery will finish on 23rd October 2015. Group 2 proposals will 
commence consultation on the 24th November 2015.

mailto:vicky.crossland@rochdale.gov.uk
mailto:Pauline.kane@rochdale.gov.uk


3.2.2 Consultation responses can be provided via:

 Email : consultation@rochdale.gov.uk

 The Council’s Website

 Libraries and Council Venues

 Consultation Focus Groups

3.3 Background and Summary

3.3.1 Central Government has a sustained programme of austerity measures to reduce the 
budget deficit by 2019/20 resulting in substantial reductions in public funding including 
that provided to Local Authorities. 

3.3.2 The wider impact of the austerity measures has been an increase in demand for public 
services as changes such as welfare reform have impacted on residents. This has put 
increased financial pressure on services the Council provides. 

3.3.3 Locally, changes in the demographics of the Borough’s population mean that demand 
for public services, if delivered in the same way as now, will grow and grow, 
particularly the demand for acute services (adult and children’s social care).

3.3.4 The current assumptions estimate that saving proposals of £37m are required, ie: 
2016/17 £21m and 2017/18 £16m. 

3.3.5 Table One The Budget Gap

2016/17

£’m

2017/18

£’m

Total

£’m

Budget Gap 21 16 37

3.3.6 The Saving Proposals for 2016/17 and 2017/18 will be consulted on in two groups, 
Group 1 and Group 2. Group 1 consultation commenced on the 8th September and 
Group 2 will commence on the 24th November.

3.3.7 Cabinet Members have identified a number of areas to reduce the budget, which have 
no workforce or service delivery implications. This has enabled the impact on staff and 
residents, at this time,  to be kept to a minimum whilst achieving a balanced budget. The 
budget reductions with no service delivery or workforce implications, achieves on-going 
savings of £5.229m in 2016/17and £0.600m in 2017/18. A number of the proposals 
provide the Council with one off resources of £6.154m in 2016/17.  Examples of these 
include proposals which:

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the service
 Realign budgets to match updated information on demand 
   Generate additional income for the Council without impacting on users
 Re-alignment of Service Budgets enabling resources to be released
 Improve the efficiency of delivering a service through systems and recording 

improvements thereby making savings 
 Release of corporate provisions/reserves/balances following review 

mailto:consultation@rochdale.gov.uk


3.3.8 The proposals which have service delivery implications are attached at Appendix 1. 
These are the proposals which we are consulting with Townships on. These proposals 
generate £0.28m of ongoing savings for 2016/17.

3.3.9 There are other proposals we are consulting with staff on which have workforce 
implications; these generate £0.307m of ongoing savings for 2016/17. 

3.4 Next Steps and Timetable

3.4.1 The consultation on Group 1 saving proposals which have service delivery implications 
will close at 5pm on 23rd October and the final version of the proposals will be discussed 
at Cabinet and Full Council in February 2016.

    
4 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual savings 
proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to the Equality Act 
duties, and recent case law decisions on both consultation requirements and equality 
impact assessments.

4.2 Legal Services has considered and advised on the following within specific reports:

 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a failure on the 
part of the Council to fulfill its statutory duties

 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third parties which can 
only be varied by agreement or which (if that does not prove possible) can only 
be terminated by substantial notice periods and consider the financial 
implications of any variations

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property assets. Some have 
restrictions on usage, some have conditions attached to gifts and planning 
restrictions mig ht apply. On this last aspect, there needs to be 
separation of the Council’s statutory role from that of property owner.

 Some proposals may ultimately involve the transfer of staff with the resultant 
need to undertake statutory consultations

 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will involve statutory 
consultations with significant minimum timescales.

 Some proposals will involve advice on contractual, procurement law matters 
(including staff related matters).

4.2 The Council will have to give notice under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with 
regard to any changes to the funding arrangements for all voluntary sector 
organisations providing carer services for the Council and work with these 
organisations to mitigate the impact of reduced funding upon their service users, 
volunteers and stakeholders.

4.3 The council must ensure that it remains open minded throughout the consultation 
period to all alternative proposals and expressions of interest.

5 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
5.1 These proposals may, depending on the outcome of public consultation, result in a 

recommendation for changes which could result in a reduction in the number of 
established posts within the Council. These would be subject to a minimum period of 
45 days consultation with staff after which, depending on the outcome of consultation 



and final decisions made, posts could be deleted as a consequence of the proposals.  
The Council would then apply its established policies and procedures to deal with any 
potential redundancies.

6 CORPORATE PRIORITIES
6.1 The revenue budget is set at Budget Fixing Council and resources are allocated in line 

with the corporate priorities of the Council.

7 RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS
7.1 The Council is required to set a lawful budget by 11th March 2016 and there is a risk if 

we do not responsibly put forward proposals for consideration to meet the budget 
reductions/pressures.

7.2 Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual appendices.  To 
manage this risk we have sought to supply Cabinet members with copies of all 
available implications to make informed decisions.

 
8 ASSET IMPLICATIONS
8.1 The proposals contained in the report may have implications for the Council’s estate, 

details of which are included in individual reports where appropriate.

9 JOINT WORKING
9.1 None of the proposals contained in the report have implications for joint working.

10 EQUALITIES IMPACTS
10.1 The Council is required to assess/analyse the potential effect on quality of its 

proposals at each stage of the process.  Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) have 
been undertaken. The Council must consider these assessments and have due regard 
to the general equality duty in the decision making process.

10.2 The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a working document which is to be 
continually developed from the onset of the development of the proposal to the 
consultation and then the final decision –making stage.  This means that as further 
detail becomes available through consultation, the EIA is updated and finalised before 
a final decision is reached.

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

10.3 A process has been agreed to undertake a workforce impact assessment to 
understand how the proposals affect the make-up of the workforce.

10.4 The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process in 2011/12, 2012/13, 
2013/14 and 2015/16. The same analysis will be undertaken for the cohort of staff 
affected by the savings proposals in 2016/17 and 2017/18.  A full equalities impact 
assessment will be undertaken following the implementation of the savings proposals, 
at which point we may need to revisit our equalities action plan or other policies.

10.5 The full workforce implications will be communicated to the Employment & Equalities 
Committee.

Equality/Economic/Community/Voluntary Section Impact Assessments



General Service User

10.7 EIA’s will be used to check whether proposals impact differentially on any groups with 
‘protected characteristics’ under the Equality Act 2010.  Initial assessments will be 
undertaken before the start of the consultation period.  Those EIA’s will then be reviewed 
at the end of the consultation period, taking account of all consultation feedback received 
and whether any new or different equalities issues have been raised.  The EIA’s will be 
available to the public via the website and also in hard copies in libraries and customer 
service centres.  The proposals and EIA’s have been provided in alternative formats, to 
those with special needs, on request.  The conclusions and any specific issues relating to 
individual proposals are reflected in the appendices to the proposal reports.

10.8 All feedback from the public consultation will be reviewed to identify any additional 
implications for the equalities issues; these will be reflected in individual proposal 
reports.

Community Impact Assessments

10.9 The proposals detailed in this report highlight any possible community impacts of the 
proposal, and will assess consultation responses received for any new/different 
community impacts.

10.10 An overall assessment will also be undertaken to understand the possible overarching 
and community impacts of the proposals.  A summary of the key findings from this 
assessment will be provided to Members.  This assessment will highlight the 
proposals that potentially have impacts on overall deprivation, educational 
attainment, crime & disorder, health & well-being, business, the voluntary/third sector, 
children at risk/safeguarding, children with special needs, and the environment.  
Proposals will be allocated a high, moderate and low impact according to the impact to 
each thematic area when taken as a whole.

Voluntary Sector Impact Assessment
10.11 The proposals detailed in the report may have implications for the voluntary and 

community sectors, details of which will be included in individual reports.

Background Papers  There are no background papers to this report.

Document Place of Inspection

Appendix 1
Public Summary of Council Savings for 2016/17-17/18

Reference Proposal Saving



Children’s Services
CS101 Proposal to Reconfigure Youth Provision £200,00

CS103 Proposal to Review Play Provision in Rochdale Borough £80,00

Summary of the Savings proposals that have an impact on Service Delivery

CS101 Proposal to Reconfigure Youth Provision

This proposal seeks to reduce costs of Youth Service provision in the borough.

General Impact 
The proposed change will:

 To close the Gower Street Youth Base and The Strand shop

 Dispose of one of the two Youth Service Mobile buses that are currently used to deliver Youth 

Services across the borough.

Impact on Service Users  
There will be a reduced offer in terms of the number of face to face sessions available to young people 

and a reduction in the number of delivery locations.

Savings Total The proposal will realise savings of £200,000

CS103 Proposal to Review Play Provision in Rochdale Borough

This proposal seeks to reduce costs of play provision in Rochdale Borough by ceasing the open access 

play provision at the Falinge Park Play Barn and a reduction in grant funding. 

General Impact 
The proposed change will;

 Cease the current staffed open access play provision at the Falinge Park Play Barn (the 
adjacent fixed equipment playground is not affected by this proposal)

 Re configure current grant funding to local groups for the delivery of open access play provision 

and related support. The current grant funding will be reduced and existing grant recipients will 

be invited to submit tenders to deliver re-configured open access play services as part of the 

tender process.

Impact on Service Users    

 The proposal will close Falinge Park Playcentre which is used, on average as follows:



 Between September 2014 and April 2015, 260 individual children attended and a total of 2,670 
contacts were made (children attending more than once)

 The proposal may result in a reduction in the number of holiday playschemes available across 
the borough (this will be subject to outcomes from the tendering process). We will endeavour to 
ensure the  maximum amount of grant funding is used for service delivery and back office costs 
are limited to minimise any potential impact on available playschemes within the tender 
process.

Savings Total The proposal will realise savings of £80,000



 

Subject: Disposal of land at Cut
                     Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift
                     Road, Rochdale

Status: For Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Jacqueline Beswick

Date: Wednesday, 16 September
                     2015 

Ward:           Norden & Bamford  

Report of: Director – Economy & Environment

Author Email:    
mohammed.nadeem@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Mohammed Nadeem

Tel: 01706 924170

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision: 

1 Purpose of the report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Rochdale Township with an update of the 
current position in respect of two plots of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, 
Rochdale and Swift Road, Rochdale as shown on the attached plans at Appendix 1 
and 2, and to seek approval for a recommended course of action for each site. 

2 Recommendations

2.1 In respect of the land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road it is recommended that:

2.1.1 In the event the Heritage/Village Green application is successful the site 
becomes a legally registered village green and the Council enters into negotiations 
with members of the local community with a view to transferring the freehold or 
leasehold interest in the site as a Community Asset.

2.1.2 In the event the Heritage/Village Green application is unsuccessful the land is 
offered for sale on the open market for residential development.   

2.2 In respect of the land at Swift Road, it is recommended that:

2.2.2 In the event the Village Green application is successful the site becomes a 
legally registered village green and the Council enters into negotiations with members 
of the local community with a view to transferring the freehold or leasehold interest in 
the site as a Community Asset.

2.2.2In the event the Village Green application is unsuccessful the land is offered for 
sale on the open market for residential development.   

Reasons for the Recommendations



2.3 The recommendations are suggested for the following reasons:

2.3.1 The disposal of the sites would be consistent with the Council’s corporate 
priorities, reducing its asset base and associated costs and obtaining capital receipts.

2.3.2 Registration of the sites as village greens currently prevents the development of 
the sites. Should the legislation change in the future Community Asset Transfer would 
give the local communities a further opportunity to permanently safeguard the future of 
the sites in accordance with their priorities, and to invest in the sites to enhance their 
value to the local communities.

3 Background

Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale

3.1 The Rochdale Township Committee at its meeting on 05th November 2014 
approved the release for disposal of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale, 
and shown edged red on the attached plan in Appendix 1. 

3.2 The decision was subsequently called-in and considered by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee on 21 January 2015.  The Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
decided to refer this matter back to Township Committee as O&S Members felt that 
Township had not fully considered all matters when coming to its decision. Local 
residents have argued that the land is a well-used area of open space and should not 
be lost to the community.

3.3 On Wednesday 4 March 2015 at the Rochdale Township Committee meeting the 
matter was referred to again and it was decided that consideration would be deferred 
to a future meeting pending the outcome of a site visit by the Chair and Vice Chair of 
Rochdale Township Committee, Norden Ward Councillors, appropriate officers of the 
Council and local community representatives. 

3.4 On Monday 23rd March 2015 members of the local community submitted an 
application for the registration of the whole of the land shown on the Plan as a Village 
Green. The objection period has now passed.  No objections were received. The 
application has been reviewed and at present additional information is required from 
the applicant. If the Council does not hear further with the information required within 
the requisite 8 week period then the application will be rejected. 
3.5 The site is freehold and measures approximately 0.49 hectares in size. The site 
falls within a greenspace corridor but it is not allocated as protected recreational open 
space. 

3.6 The plot is a fairly level, well maintained area within residential properties with a 
few trees  running adjacent to Caldershaw Brook. The site is known to have difficult 
ground conditions which may limit development options, should the Council be free to 
dispose of the site on the open market. 

3.7 Residential development would be suitable along the frontage with Cut Lane, 
however maintaining and enhancing the greenspace corridor is essential. Dwellings 
would be limited to approximately six in total.  

3.8 The agreed site meeting took place on 28 July 2015 and was attended by 
Councillors, local residents and Council officers. 



Land at Swift Road, Rochdale 

3.8 The Rochdale Township Committee at its meeting on 05th November 2014 
approved the release for disposal of land at Swift Road, Rochdale, and shown edged 
red on the attached plan.

3.9 The site was due to be sold at auction on 26th February 2015 however the site was 
withdrawn pending further investigation because local residents came forward to 
object to the sale. Some residents claimed the site was a designated Town and Village 
Green. This is not the case.

3.10 The site was originally sold by the Council to Whelmar Homes as part of a larger 
housing development plot. The site was subsequently bought back by the Council in 
1988 to be maintained as a landscaped area. Whelmar Homes paid the Council 
£2,500 towards the cost of maintenance of the land. 

3.11 Furthermore the planning permission for the development of the Estate, attached 
the following condition on the land: “The area of public open space shown on the 
approved plan shall be provided for use by the general public concurrent with the 
carrying out of the approved development and shall be maintained to the satisfaction 
of the Local Planning Authority thereafter.” A new planning consent would supersede 
the conditions in the original planning permission.

3.12 Whilst not on the agenda at Rochdale Township Committee meeting on 
Wednesday 4 March 2015 the matter was raised in the open forum. Rochdale 
Township Committee decided that no action was to be taken in respect of the 
development of the site at Swift Road, pending the outcome of a site visit by the Chair 
and Vice Chair of Rochdale Township Committee, Norden Ward Councillors, 
appropriate officers of the Council and local community representatives. 

3.13 In May 2015 members of the local community submitted an application for the 
registration of the land as a Village Green. The objection period to the registration of 
the land as a town or village green ended on 2 September 2015. The application will 
then be reviewed by the Council in its capacity as Commons Registration Authority.

3.14 The site is freehold and measures approximately 0.15 hectares in size. The site is 
a tree-lined triangular plot backing onto a stream with gated entrance. The most 
appropriate use for this land would be for housing, which would need to be compatible 
with the surrounding buildings. 

3.15 The agreed site meeting took place on 28 July 2015 and was attended by 
Councillors, local residents and officers. 

Options

3.16 The range of options available for the future of both sites are identical and 
dependent on the outcome of the Village Green Application:

3.16.1 Retention by the Council as Village greens



In the event that the Village Green applications for the sites are successful then the 
sites would be legally registered as Village Greens. The Council, as landowner, would 
remain responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the sites. This would include 
regular maintenance as well as dealing with fly-tipping and other anti-social activities 
which may take place on the land. This would have ongoing financial liabilities for the 
Council; or

3.16.2 Community Asset Transfer
The Council could undertake a community asset transfer to the local community. 
Community Asset Transfer would give the local communities opportunity to 
permanently safeguard the future of the sites in accordance with their priorities, and to 
invest in the sites to enhance their value to the local communities; or

3.16.3 Release for Disposal
In the event that the Village Green applications are not successful then the Council is 
in a position to reconsider the disposal of these sites on the open market for residential 
development. Not only would this remove a maintenance liability from the Council but 
would also generate capital receipts and bring new homes to the Borough, along with 
the associated New Homes Bonus and council tax income; or.

3.16.4 Retention of both sites by the Council
Retain both sites in their current use, regardless of the outcome of the Village Green 
applications. Retention of the sites will not secure capital receipts or beneficial 
development, nor reduce the Council’s financial and/or environmental liabilities. 

4 Financial Implications

4.1Retention of the sites by the Council, whether formally registered as Village Greens 
or not, would result in the Council incurring ongoing maintenance and upkeep costs. 
Granting a lease of the land to the Friends Groups would safeguard the sites’ retention 
for the community, transfer financial responsibility to the Groups, and provide the 
opportunity for the local communities to invest in the improvement of the sites for 
community benefit. A disposal of the sites on the open market would generate capital 
receipts in addition to removing ongoing maintenance liabilities.

5  Legal Implications

5.1  If the application for village green status is successful any disposal of the sites can 
only be for use as a village green.

5.2  If the application for village green status is unsuccessful and the sites are offered 
for sale on the open market it is essential that due to the location of the sites and their 
limited development areas that covenants and restrictions are imposed on the Buyers 
to ensure that the proposed use of the sites are in keeping with their location and, as 
such, that the Council retains a degree of control. The most prudent way of achieving 
this is by granting a lease to the Buyer.

5.3  It is government policy that local authorities should dispose of surplus land where 
possible. Local authorities are given powers under s123(1) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to dispose of land held by them in any manner they wish, including: sale of 
freehold; grant of a lease; and assignment of any unexpired term of a lease. The only 
constraint is that, except with the consent of the Secretary of State, the disposal must 
be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable and terms should be negotiated 
accordingly.



6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report. 

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The disposal would meet the objectives of the Council’s Asset Strategy by 
reducing the number of Council owned assets and financial liabilities. 

7.2 The Council is committed to release surplus assets and to continually review its 
need to hold land and property assets. Disposal of surplus assets assists the Council 
in its provision of services by producing capital receipts, reducing borrowing, reducing 
grant reliance and assists in achieving the efficiency targets. The disposal of surplus 
assets reduces the Council’s liabilities and the release of development opportunities 
encourages economic activity in the Borough. 

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 The sites are currently vacant. Retaining this site in its current use carries the risk 
of liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behavior and regular or ad hoc maintenance 
obligations. 

8.2 Community Asset Transfer will pass maintenance responsibilities to members of 
the local community. To manage the risks to members of the public, the Council 
should ensure that any constituted group has the capability of fulfilling this 
responsibility.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection



ROCH DALE
METROPOLITAN BOROUGH

COUNCIL

Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

Scale - 1:1250 Date of plot: 04/06/2014



ROCHDALE
METROPOLITAN BOROUGH

COUNCIL

Land at Swift Road, Bamford

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150n

Scale - 1:1250 Date of plot: 27/09/2013



1

 

Subject: Neighbourhood Planning - 
Application for a Neighbourhood Area & Forum

Status: For Decision

Report to: Rochdale Township

Cabinet Member: Councillor Neil Emmott, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate and Regulation

Date: 16 September 2015
 

Report of: Mark Widdup 

Author Email:    Sohida.banu@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Sohida Banu

Tel: 01706 924364

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

Key Decision: 

1 Purpose of the report
1.1 To inform Members that applications for the designation of a Neighbourhood Area 

and a Neighbourhood Forum have been received from the prospective Rooley 
Moor Forum in order to prepare a Neighbourhood Development Plan.

1.2 To seek Township approval to carry out public consultation as required by the 
Localism Act 2011 on the proposed applications.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That the Township Committee approves the following as the basis for public 
consultation:
 the proposed Rooley Moor area boundary, as described in the plan.
 the Rooley Moor Forum neighbourhood application.

3 Background

3.1 The 2011 Localism Act introduced new powers for local communities to become 
involved in planning matters and specifically relates to the production of 
Neighbourhood Plans, Neighbourhood Development Orders (NDO) and Community 
Right to Build Orders (CRtB). 

3.2 The Act seeks to hand more power to local communities in influencing how their local 
areas are developed. By providing a statutory framework, the Act opens up the 
opportunity for residents to create community-led plans (or neighbourhood plans) to 
meet local aspirations. However, the need for neighbourhood plans must be both 
positive and in conformity with local strategic planning policies. In addition, any 
neighbourhood plan must be ‘pro-development’ and cannot be used to stop 
development already allocated or permitted, or propose less development than the 
Local Plan. The first stage of this - the Core Strategy - is currently being prepared and 
should be adopted by early 2016. 

3.3 Neighbourhood development plans or orders do not take effect unless there is a 
majority of support in a referendum of the neighbourhood. They also have to meet a 
number of conditions before they can be put to a community referendum and legally 
come into force. They must:



2

 have regard to national planning policy;
 be in general conformity with strategic policies in the development plan for the 

local area (i.e. such as the Core Strategy); and
 be compatible with the European Union’s obligations and human rights 

requirements.

3.4 A neighbourhood development plan may contain a range of policies or proposals for 
land use development that will be used as part of determining decisions on planning 
applications. It can also grant planning permission through neighbourhood 
development orders for a particular, defined type of development in an area or a 
specific site. We would expect neighbourhood development orders to be part of 
neighbourhood development plans. 

3.5 The new process requires decisions to be made by the council at various stages in 
order to designate an area and forum for the preparation of a neighbourhood 
development plan. 

3.6 The stages for producing a neighbourhood development plan are outlined below:

Stage 1: An application for a neighbourhood area is made to the Council for 
determination.  The Council must ensure that designated neighbourhood areas do not 
overlap, as no more than one neighbourhood development plan may be made for a 
particular designated neighbourhood area.

Stage 2: Following the designation of a neighbourhood area, an additional application 
is made by an appropriately constituted organisation to be designated as the 
neighbourhood forum. There are specific criteria that a designated neighbourhood 
forum must have a minimum membership requirement of 21 people and that they are 
appropriately representative of stakeholders living or working within the plan area.

Stage 3: Once the neighbourhood area is designated, the neighbourhood forum 
prepares the draft neighbourhood development plan or order. This stage includes 
consultation with residents and businesses within the plan area, and areas that may 
be affected by the plan.

Stage 4: The Council checks conformity with the basic procedural requirements, such 
as conformity with planning policy, the Local Plan, the National Planning Policy 
Framework, and legislation, as appropriate.

Stage 5: If the neighbourhood development plan is considered to be in conformity 
with policy and legislation, the Council appoints an independent examiner to carry out 
an examination on the plan, including the possibility for a hearing of oral evidence. 
This check further ensures the plan conforms to policy, legislation and that it is not in 
breach of EU legislation.

Stage 6: Subject to the examiner’s recommendations, the Council will decide the 
appropriate course of action. If the examination finds that the neighbourhood 
development plan satisfies the requirements, the Council must plan, publicise and 
hold a referendum to ascertain whether there is support for the plan. If more than 50% 
of those voting in the referendum vote ‘yes’, then the Council will bring the plan into 
force.  If the plan is not fit to proceed to referendum, or is rejected at a referendum, 
the process must start again.

3.7 Although, it is recommended that stages 1 and 2 are done sequentially, the Council 
does have the discretion to accept applications for neighbourhood areas and forums 
at the same time. Generally a neighbourhood area application would be submitted 
and designated by the Council before a neighbourhood forum application is 



3

submitted.  This is to enable the Council to make a judgement on how well the 
membership of the proposed neighbourhood forum reflects the designated 
neighbourhood area.  However, community organisations may submit both 
applications simultaneously, and the six week consultation on each would run 
concurrently

3.8 In this instance, both applications have been simultaneously submitted to save time 
and resources, as well as efficiently using the democratic reporting process and 
Members’ time.  This would not compromise or impact on the statutory publication 
period of six weeks, and would make sure the community still had enough time to 
consider the proposals. 

3.9 However, there is the risk that if the neighbourhood area boundary is changed by the 
Council before it is designated, then the neighbourhood forum membership may not 
be appropriate.  Should this be the case then only the forum application will need to 
be resubmitted and consulted on.  

Application for designation of a neighbourhood area

3.10 The Council is responsible for receiving and determining applications for the 
designation of a neighbourhood area (i.e. an area to which a neighbourhood plan 
relates). Part 2, Section 5 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations
2012 states that application for designation of a neighbourhood area must include:

a) a map which identifies the area to which the area application applies;
b) a statement explaining why the area is considered appropriate to be designated as 

a neighbourhood area; and
c) a statement that the organisation or body making the area application is the 

relevant body for the purpose of section 61G of the 1990 Act.

3.11 This initial stage does not involve an assessment of the information included within 
the application, but ascertaining that the requisite information is present within the 
application and whether or not there is an existing neighbourhood forum for the area.  

In Officers view it is considered the current application meets the above 
minimum legal requirements. In addition, there are no other existing or proposed 
neighbourhood areas for that site.

3.12 As soon as practicable after receiving an area application, the Council must formally 
publish it on its website for a statutory period of 6 weeks. This must include a copy of 
the area application, details of how to make representations and a date by which 
those representations must be received. The Council is then required to consider any 
representations received.

Application for designation of a neighbourhood forum

3.13 The Council is responsible for receiving and determining applications for the 
designation of a neighbourhood forum.  Section 61F (5) of the Act states that local 
planning authorities may designate an organisation or body as a neighbourhood 
forum if the following conditions are met:

 It is established for the express purpose of promoting or improving the social, 
economic and environmental well-being of an area that consists of or includes the 
neighbourhood area concerned.

 Its membership is open to-
(i). Individuals who live in the neighbourhood area concerned,
(ii). Individuals who work there, and
(iii). Individuals who are elected members of a county council, district council or 



4

London borough council any of whose area falls within the neighbourhood area 
concerned.

 Its membership includes a minimum of 21 individuals, each of whom falls into at least 
one of the categories in (i) to (iii) above.

 It has a written constitution.

In Officers view it is considered the current application meets the above 
minimum legal requirements.

3.14 Again, as soon as practicable after receiving a forum application, the Council must 
formally publish it on its website for a statutory period of 6 weeks. This must include a 
copy of the forum application, details of how to make representations and a date by 
which those representations must be received. The Council is then required to 
consider any representations received.

Next Steps

3.15 Once approved for consultation, the neighbourhood area and forum application must 
then be publicised for consultation for a period of not less than six weeks seeking 
representations from the area of interest.  The council must publicise on the website 
and in any other ways considered relevant a copy of the area application, details of 
how to make representations and the date by which those representations must be 
received   Township Members are invited to comment on whether any further publicity 
should be sought in this specific case.  

3.16 If, following this public consultation, it is deemed appropriate to designate the Rooley 
Moor Neighbourhood Area and Forum for a prospective Rooley Moor Neighbourhood 
Development Plan, a further report will be brought back to Township Committee 
requesting members to approve the designation of the Area and the Forum so that 
the process of preparing a neighbourhood development plan by the local community 
may begin.  

What is the council’s role in neighbourhood planning?

3.17 Neighbourhood development plans are prepared by the community but there are a 
number of things the Council has a duty to do. It must:
• consult on and make a decision on the boundary of the area to be designated the 

neighbourhood area for the purposes of the neighbourhood development plan;
• consult on and determine applications for designation of a neighbourhood forum;
• organise the check by an independent examiner into a neighbourhood 

development plan;
• organise the referendum into the plan; and
• if supported, resolve to adopt the neighbourhood development Plan and to bring it 

into force on a particular date.

The Council also has a duty to provide technical advice and support to those 
producing a Neighbourhood Development Plan.

Alternatives considered
3.18 The ability for local communities to come together to create a neighbourhood forum 

and plan for any development and infrastructure within their areas through the 
production of neighbourhood development plans was introduced by the Localism Act 
2011. The Act seeks to promote and encourage greater development and 
involvement by local communities in the planning of their respective areas.  The 
Council has a duty to consider and support the preparation of neighbourhood 
development plans by a neighbourhood forum constituted for a designated 
neighbourhood area. The Council is however not obliged to adopt a neighbourhood 
development plan but may do so upon which the neighbourhood development plan 



5

will become a material planning consideration in the determination of future planning 
decisions for the particular neighbourhood area.

4 Financial Implications
4.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations within 

this report or for the Council’s involvement in the process at this stage.  Going 
forward, the costs to the Council will depend on the nature and scale of help and 
support provided and the ability of community groups to contribute financially to the 
process or obtain further funding to support the plan preparation.  The duty to support 
does not require the Council to give financial assistance to a designated 
neighbourhood forum unless it chooses to do so.  Currently, the Government has 
suggested funds will be made available to authorities to cover the costs of the 
independent check and referendum but no details are yet available. It is not possible 
to provide an authoritative estimate of the total costs involved in preparing a plan.  
However, if the Council decides to provide financial assistance then a separate 
Cabinet report will be provide to agree to this.

5  Legal Implications
5.1 The report identifies that the position is the requirement to establish a Neighbourhood 

Area before progressing to a more formal Neighbourhood Plan. The requirements for 
establishing a Neighbourhood Area and subsequent Neighbourhood Plan, including 
the administrative functions of local authorities, are established in the Localism Act 
2011 and more specifically in the statutory instrument made under this being f the 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.  Further reports would need to 
be presented to Members in the event of the designation of the proposed area 
boundary and forum for a prospective  Neighbourhood Plan. 

6 Personnel Implications
6.1 Much of the work associated with plan preparation is to be undertaken by the local 

community rather than the Council.  However, it is clear that this process will require 
some staff input from Planning, Legal, Township and other services, in the event of 
the designation of the proposed area boundary as the neighbourhood area for a 
prospective Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Development Plan.  The Council is 
presently at an advanced stage in the preparation of the Core Strategy and has 
agreed to work collectively with AGMA and the other nine Greater Manchester 
Districts to prepare a new development plan covering housing and employment land 
and infrastructure – the GM Spatial Framework.  At this stage, however it is expected 
that work to support the designation of the proposed area boundary and Forum can 
be met from within existing staffing resources. Should this position change 
appropriate consultation will be undertaken with relevant staff(s).

7 Corporate Priorities
7.1 Any neighbourhood development plan must take into account and reflect the priorities 

and policies in other local plan guidance and strategies for the Council.  In preparing a 
neighbourhood development plan consideration must be given to current Township 
priorities at the time of preparation.  This will clearly be critical to the Council’s 
acceptance of any neighbourhood development plan for Rooley Moor neighbourhood 
area.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 
8.1 All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk 

considerations as set out below:
• Local communities will be required to show that they are able to accommodate 
requirements for growth and development in their areas in accordance with the Local 
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. If they simply seek to prevent 
development, current Guidance indicates the Plan will not succeed at an independent 
examination.



6

• Resourcing neighbourhood planning forums and neighbourhood planning areas is 
likely to be an issue faced by communities and authorities.  It is noted and would be 
expected that much of the work and resource is expected to be undertaken by the 
designated neighbourhood forum.
• Based on national feedback elsewhere, the preparation of neighbourhood 
development plans appears to be a lengthy and resource intensive process. Further 
reports setting out any resource or risk implications would need to be presented to 
Township for consideration.

9. Equalities Impacts
9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report at this stage of the 
process.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report at this stage of the 
process therefore an Equalities Impact Assessment has not been completed, in this 
instance.  However, the public consultation will look to raise awareness and interest 
overall in the Neighbourhood Planning process.  It will look to invite comments from 
the general public to get involved in the process.  Membership for the Forum is open 
to anyone living and working in the area, and elected members for the area.

Once the preparation and development of a Neighbourhood Plan begins, an 
Equalities Impact Assessment will be completed and reported to Members.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Rooley Moor Forum Constitution Members’ Group Rooms



7

ApplicationApplication  forfor  thethe  DesignationDesignation  ofof  aa  NeighbourhoodNeighbourhood  AreaArea

Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012

Application for the Designation of a Neighbourhood 
Area (Regulation 5)

This form has been prepared by Rochdale Council to help simplify the application process for 
designation of a neighbourhood area. You do not have to use the form.  Please note that the 
information provided on this application form and its supporting documents will be made public. 
If you require any further clarification, or would like to discuss the boundaries of your 
proposed Neighbourhood Area with the Council before you submit your application, please 
contact the Strategic Planning Service via email at LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk

1. Applicant Details
Contact name: Alan Rawsterne

Organisation name: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum - to be registered as a Charitable 
Incorporated Organisation (CIO)

Address: Care of:- Owd House, Fern Hill Lane, Rochdale. OL12 6BW

Email Address: alanrawsterne@hotmail.com

Telephone Number: 01706 354161 – mobile 07970 715904

2. Name of Proposed Neighbourhood Area
Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area



8

3. Neighbourhood Area Details - Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area Map



9

Why this area is appropriate
The area boundary is based on the Electoral register area called ‘FA’ in the Spotland and Falinge 
Ward. It connects households to the polling station in Catley Lane Head, and excludes the area to 
the west of Rooley Moor Road. This leaves the area as a ‘rural and villages area’ and avoids the 
anomaly of the West side of Rooley Moor Road along the Stonehill estate being in the area, 
whilst Elmpark and the East side are excluded.  This area has been chosen in conjunction with the 
residents and Ward Councillor as being manageable in terms of preparation of a neighbourhood 
plan, and can be extended with further adjoining neighbourhood plans at a later date should the 
appetite exist to do so.

Our ‘neighbourhood area’ includes Catley Lane Head, the Cotton Famine Road section of Rooley 
Moor Road, Fern Hill and the Prickshaw & Broadly Fold Conservation Area. The physical 
appearance and characteristics of the neighbourhood area are consistent with a natural rural 
setting that includes buildings of a similar style.

There is local sense of a ‘neighbourhood’ and whilst our area has the smallest population of the 
Spotland and Falinge Ward, the creation of an ‘area forum’ will formalise community networks to 
include the views of those who live, work, pursue recreational activities and carry out business in 
the area. Our intention is also to create a ‘neighbourhood model’ that we can use to support the 
creation of other neighbourhood areas within the Ward.

Area background
Catley Lane Head is the ‘Gateway to Rooley Moor and the Famine Road’ it contains a number of 
listed buildings and we believe this is a heritage asset worthy of conservation area status. In 
addition this area attracts an active fishing community run for many years by Whitworth Valley 
Angling Society with funding from local government for disabled facilities at fisheries situated at 
Lane Head and Broadley Wood.

The 'Famine Road' section of Rooley Moor Road could be of National and International 
importance, it is a reminder of the harsh times cotton workers had to endure during the Cotton 
Famine and is unique in linking the American Civil War to social changes in our own country at a 
time when the Rochdale Pioneer Movement influenced social thinking throughout the UK. At an 
altitude of over 1500 feet this historic feature may also lay claim to being one of the highest 
roads in England. Enjoyed by walkers & runners, ornithologists and cyclists, this moorland route 
also forms part of the Pennine Bridleway allowing safe access for horse riders on the Mary 
Townley Loop. The upper section of Rooley Moor Road is visible from many miles away (often 
called the ‘yellow brick road’) and is a prominent part of the North Manchester / Lancashire / 
West Yorkshire landscape. We think many people who see the road from afar do not currently 
appreciate its history or significance, and an underlying objective of the neighbourhood forum 
will be to improve this awareness.

Fern Hill is a small hamlet containing a number of listed buildings one of which could be 
associated with the early Wesleyan movement, possibly being used as a Sunday school or 
meeting room.

The Prickshaw & Broadley Fold Conservation Area is unique and with a history going back to the 
13th Century it is designated as an area of historic and architectural interest worthy of 
preservation and enhancement.



10

4. More About You 
Capability of the neighbourhood forum to be a qualifying body
The proposals for our neighbourhood area are put forward by the proposed ‘Rooley Moor 
Neighbourhood Forum’ (RMNF). A request to approve the neighbourhood forum has been 
submitted with this application to designate the neighbourhood area.

The RMNF has been established to promote and improve the social, economic and 
environmental wellbeing of the Rooley Moor Area. This will be achieved by agreeing a vision for 
the Rooley Moor Area, preparing development policies (that conform with local and national 
planning policies) to achieve this vision and by preparing a Neighbourhood Plan for the Rooley 
Moor area which embodies these policies and any other appropriate purpose agreed by the 
forum.

Our values are to conduct forum affairs ethically and observe the 'Nolan Principles', the seven 
principles of public life, namely Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness, 
Honesty and Leadership; and to pursue equality of opportunity in terms of its membership, its 
conduct and its proposed Plan.

Membership is open to all individuals who live, work, pursue recreational activities and carry out 
business in the area, ward councillors and individuals who are elected members.

The initiating group requested information about neighbourhood planning through the Spotland 
and Falinge Area Forum. This was followed up by conversations with the planning officers of 
Rochdale Borough Council and from these conversations the proposed neighbourhood area was 
drawn up. The proposed area is predominantly rural and residential. There are a number of listed 
buildings in the area and the majority of houses are of a similar style being stone built and 
privately owned. Business in the area includes farming, equestrian and bed & breakfast. Other 
business professionals living and working from the area include accountants and teachers.

An initial consultation on the principles of a neighbourhood plan has been carried out by small 
group discussions and email. The first formal meeting of the forum has yet to be held, however, 
sufficient people have volunteered to become officers and members of the forum – please see 
the attached register of forum officers and members to be proposed at the first meeting 
following designation.

There are initially 26 people who wish to be a members of the forum. They bring a range of 
expertise including, finance, marketing, tax, project management, information technology, 
education, accounting, business owners, walkers, equestrians, anglers and members of the 
clergy. The majority of forum members are residents who live or work in the area, plus our Ward 
Councillor and business representatives with their businesses dependent on our area. Members 
have expressed a desire to:

 Achieve conservation area status for Catley Lane Head, the Cotton Famine Road and Fern 
Hill

 Attract sympathetic development by putting the area on the map as an asset to be 
developed for tourism and traditional outdoor activity

 Link the area with two of the borough's beauty spots. Healey Dell nature reserve and 
Greenboth/Naden reservoirs - both of which have interesting histories

The forum’s constitution and a proposed management committee is attached. A bank account 
and website is soon to be established.



11

Register of Members

First Name Surname Interest In Area
Proposed Forum 
Membership Comments

A Rawsterne Resident Trustee & Secretary

F Healey Resident Treasurer

J Newcombe Resident Trustee Chair of The Prickshaw and Broadley Fold Conservation Area Committee
A Meek Resident Forum Committee
N Marr Resident Member We support this idea, as obviously we live within the conservation area so are keen to 

do whatever we can to help preserve and enhance our environment. Also, as a family, 
we are keen equestrians, walkers and bikers so we really do value the open space we 
have on our doorstep.

J Lord Resident Member
J Holt Resident Member I am interested in being a member of the forum. I have lived in this area more than 50 

years and I am the fourth generation of my family to do so. My father and grandfather 
owned the smallholdings at the bottom of Rooley Moor. My great grandfather and 
family came from North Yorkshire and lived at Naden Head Farm before that, so my 
family have worked and farmed the land for more than one hundred years

M Stirzaker Resident Member
C Stirzaker Resident Member
H Moore Resident Chair We have strong sense of being part of an old and established rural community. We are 

feel lucky to live near such an accessible open space, and enjoy all it has to offer and the 
pleasure it affords to others

A Moore Resident Member
C Biant Ward Councillor Forum Committee
R Thorniley Walker Trustee & Vice Chair Footpath and Countryside Secretary, The Ramblers, Rochdale Group
P Howard Resident Forum Committee
M Morgan Resident Trustee
S Morgan Resident Member
W Mcghee Resident Forum Committee
D Ireland Resident Member
D Ireland Resident Member
D McGhee Resident Member
G Fitton Resident Forum Committee I am interested in being a member of the Neighbourhood Forum as a resident I want to 

see the area and its environs conserved and improved for future generations. I also feel 
the area is one of Rochdale s greatest assets and should be protected from 
inappropriate use and developments

I Pope Equestrian Forum Committee To protect and develop equestrian access on Rooley Moor and surrounding areas
C Thomas Equestrian & Business 

Owner
Member I am interested in the area as a walker, accommodation provider, horse rider and 

equestrian business. I don't live in the area but believe in a holistic approach to 
preserving our precious countryside resources and have been very impressed by the 
neighbourhood feeling generated by the Rooley Moor campaign

C Perkins Resident Member
N Green Resident TBA
D Madgin Resident Member Resident of Prickshaw for 21 years and Walker, previous interest in Equestrian from 

daughter and neighbour.I take pride in living in such a picturesque area of Rochdale, it 
feels like going on holiday living in Prickshaw!   I would like to see a high standard for the 
village and surrounding areas for me, villagers, residents and the passing horse riders, 
mountain bikers and walkers



5. Declaration:
I hereby apply for the designation of a neighbourhood area as described in this form and 
shown on the accompanying plan.

Signed: Alan Rawsterne

Dated: 13/08/2015

In accordance with Regulation 6 (Publicising an area application), Rochdale Council will 
publicise, and invite comments on the application for a 6 week period. 

Please submit this form, and attached documentation, by email at 
LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk 

Alternatively, please post the form and supporting documents to:
Strategic Planning Service

Number 1 Riverside

Smith Street, 

Rochdale, 

OL16 1XU

mailto:LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk


ApplicationApplication  forfor  thethe  DesignationDesignation  ofof  aa  NeighbourhoodNeighbourhood  ForumForum
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 
2012

Application for the Designation of a 
Neighbourhood Forum (Regulation 8)

This form has been prepared by Rochdale Council to help simplify the application 
process for designation of a neighbourhood forum. You do not have to use the form.  
Please note that the information provided on this application form and its supporting 
documents will be made public. If you require any further clarification, or would 
like to discuss the proposed Neighbourhood Forum with the Council before you 
submit your application, please contact the Strategic Planning Service via email 
at LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 Regulations 8, 9 and 10 
requires details of at least one member of the proposed neighbourhood forum to be 
made public.

1. Applicant Details

Contact name: Alan Rawsterne

Organisation name: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum - to be registered as a 
Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO)

Address: Care of:- Owd House, Fern Hill Lane, Rochdale. OL12 6BW

Email Address: alanrawsterne@hotmail.com

Telephone Number: 01706 354161 – mobile 07970 715904

2. Name of Proposed Neighbourhood Forum

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum

3. Name of Proposed Neighbourhood Area – Please give the name of the relevant 
neighbourhood area and attach a map identifying the extent of the area.

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area

4. Written Constitution (please attach)

☒ Constitution attached (included as Background Document – Available in 
Members Lounge)





5. Statement

This section provides the opportunity to set out the purpose, aims and ambitions of the 
neighbourhood forum and to demonstrate how its membership is representative of the 
local community.

In order for the Council to designate a neighbourhood forum to act on behalf of a 
neighbourhood area, it needs to be satisfied that the following conditions contained in 
Section 61F (5) of Schedule 9 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by the Localism Act) are met:

a) it is established for the express purpose of promoting or improving the social, 
economic and environmental well-being of the neighbourhood area concerned 
(whether or not it is also established for the express purpose of promoting the 
carrying on of trades, professions or other businesses in such an area)

b) membership is open to and includes a minimum of 21 individuals each of 
whom:

- live in the neighbourhood area;
- work in the neighbourhood area;
- carry out business in the neighbourhood area (for example, represent 

the area as a local councillor or as a Member of Parliament).
c) it has a written constitution (as detailed in Section 2)

Please set out the purpose, aims and ambitions of the proposed neighbourhood 
forum here: 
The RMNF has been established to promote and improve the social, economic and 
environmental wellbeing of the Rooley Moor Area. This will be achieved by agreeing a vision 
for the Rooley Moor Area, preparing development policies (that conform with local and 
national planning policies) to achieve this vision and by preparing a Neighbourhood Plan for 
the Rooley Moor area which embodies these policies and any other appropriate purpose 
agreed by the forum.

Our values are to conduct forum affairs ethically and observe the 'Nolan Principles', the seven 
principles of public life, namely Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness, 
Honesty and Leadership; and to pursue equality of opportunity in terms of its membership, its 
conduct and its proposed Plan.

Membership is open to all individuals who live, work, pursue recreational activities and carry 
out business in the area, ward councillors and individuals who are elected members.

The initiating group requested information about neighbourhood planning through the 
Spotland and Falinge Area Forum. This was followed up by conversations with the planning 
officers of Rochdale Borough Council and from these conversations the proposed 
neighbourhood area was drawn up. The proposed area is predominantly rural and residential. 
There are a number of listed buildings in the area and the majority of houses are of a similar 
style being stone built and privately owned. Business in the area includes farming, equestrian 
and bed & breakfast. Other business professionals living and working from the area include 
accountants and teachers.

An initial consultation on the principles of a neighbourhood plan has been carried out by 



small group discussions and email. The first formal meeting of the forum has yet to be held, 
however, sufficient people have volunteered to become officers and members of the forum – 
please see the attached register of forum officers and members to be proposed at the first 
meeting following designation.

There are initially 26 people who wish to be a members of the forum. They bring a range of 
expertise including, finance, marketing, tax, project management, information technology, 
education, accounting, business owners, walkers, equestrians, anglers and members of the 
clergy. The majority of forum members are residents who live or work in the area, plus our 
Ward Councillor and business representatives with their businesses dependent on our area. 
Members have expressed a desire to:

 Achieve conservation area status for Catley Lane Head, the Cotton Famine Road and 
Fern Hill

 Attract sympathetic development by putting the area on the map as an asset to be 
developed for tourism and traditional outdoor activity

 Link the area with two of the borough's beauty spots. Healey Dell nature reserve and 
Greenboth/Naden reservoirs - both of which have interesting histories



6. Membership of proposed Neighbourhood Forum

A minimum of 21 members is required, each of whom must live, work or carry out 
business in the neighbourhood area, or be an elected member (whose area falls 
within the neighbourhood area).

The Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012 require a Neighbourhood Forum to 
comprise a good cross section of the Neighbourhood Area so as to be considered 
representative.

Interest in Neighbourhood Area
Name Lives 

in area
Business 
in area

Works 
in area

Cllr or 
MP

1 Alan Rawsterne Y N N
2 F Healey Y Y N
3 J Newcombe Y N N
4 A Meek Y N Y
5 N Marr Y N N
6 J Lord Y N N
7 J Holt N N N
8 M Stirzaker Y N N
9 C Stirzaker Y N N
10 H Moore Y N N
11 A Moore Y N N
12 C Biant N N N Y
13 R Thorniley N N N
14 P Howard Y N N
15 M Morgan Y N N
16 S Morgan Y N N
17 W Mcghee Y N N
18 D Ireland Y N N
19 D Ireland Y N N
20 D McGhee Y N N
21 G Fitton Y N N
22 I Pope N N N
23 C Thomas N N N
24 C T Perkins Y N N
25 N Green Y N N
26 D Madgin Y N N
27 G Ogden Y N N
28 J Ogden Y N N

mailto:cecile.biant@rochdale.gov.uk


7. Declaration:
I hereby apply for the designation of a neighbourhood area as described in this form 
and shown on the accompanying plan.

Signed: Alan Rawsterne

Dated: 13/08/2015

8. Next Steps

Following the submission of the neighbourhood forum and area application form the  
Council will:

- check the application is valid;
- publish the application for a minimum six week period to allow for 

representations; and
- consider representations and make a decision whether to designate a 

neighbourhood forum and area.

Once a neighbourhood forum is designated it can then engage and consult with the 
wider community to develop a plan for their neighbourhood.

Please submit this form, and attached documentation, by email at 
LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk

Alternatively, please post the form and supporting documents to:

Strategic Planning Service
Number 1 Riverside
Smith Street, 
Rochdale, 
OL16 1XU



1

APPENDIX 

Equality Impact Assessment

 

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below.

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below

Service: Section: 

Responsible Officer: Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Date of Assessment:

Officers Involved:

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

The Council has a duty to support groups who express and interest in preparing such a plan.

2.Who are the key stakeholders?

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  



2

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.



3

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

Race Equality 



4

Disabled People

Carers

Gender

Age

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel



5

Sexual Orientation

Gender Reassignment

Religion or Belief

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave



6

Marriage or Civil Partnership

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

12.What are your recommendations?

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________



7



8

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2014/15

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion

Resource 
Implications

Lead Officer



1

Version2 Review Date March  2015

Equality Impact Analysis Guidance

Introduction

This guidance explains what an equality impact assessment is and what it 
involves.  It also provides background details about the general equality duty.  
The aim is to apply a proportionate, timely approach to assessing equality 
when developing policies and delivering services.

Equality Impact Assessment

An equality impact assessment is a tool which will help you to analyse your 
policies and practices to make sure they do not discriminate against or 
disadvantage  people.   It will also help you to improve and promote equality.

An equality impact assessment needs to be undertaken when you are 
developing a new service, policy, strategy or project.  You should also 
undertake an equality impact assessment if you propose to introduce 
significant changes to an existing function, policy, strategy or project.  This 
assessment needs to provide elected members with sufficient information to 
enable them to pay due regard to the general equality duty before they reach 
a decision about any changes proposed.  The time and effort involved in 
undertaking the equality impact assessment should be in proportion to the 
policy, strategy or project’s relevance to equality.

The General Equality Duty

The aim of the general equality duty, set out in S149 of the Equality Act 2010, 
is for public bodies to consider the needs of all individuals in their day to day 
work, in developing policy, in delivering services, and in relation to their own 
employees.  

In the exercise of their functions, public authorities must have due regard to 
the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation or any other 
conduct prohibited by the Act in relation to the protected characteristics

 Advance equality of opportunity for all persons
 Foster good relations between groups of people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not

Advancing equality means:
 Removing or minimising disadvantages
 Equalising outcomes
 Meeting needs
 Encouraging participation where this is low and/or addressing under-

representation

Fostering good relations means:



2

Version2 Review Date March  2015

 Tackling prejudice
 Promoting understanding

Paying “Due Regard” to the General Equality Duty

The general equality duty is not prescriptive about the approach a public 
authority should take in ensuring that it is having due regard to the need to 
advance the equality aims.  However the judgement reached by Mr Justice 
Walker in the High Court in the case R (on the application of W) -v -
Birmingham City Council [2011] EWHC 1147 does explain that “due regard” is 
a 'substantial rigorous and open-minded approach'.  The “due regard” 
required is very high when a decision is being made which may affect large 
numbers of vulnerable people, many of whom may fall within one or more of 
the protected groups.  

Case law has developed the following principles which apply to the new 
general equality duty.  These principles include:

1. Decision makers must be fully aware of the implications of the 
duty when making decisions about their policies and practices

2. The duty is triggered whenever “an issue arises” or when a 
particular policy or proposal is being developed – so it runs right 
from the time the policy or proposal is being framed, while it is 
under consideration, and when the decision is reached.  A public 
authority cannot satisfy the duty by justifying a decision after it 
has been taken.

3. The duty must be exercised in a way that it influences the final 
decision.  For example, consideration of the need to advance 
equality should form an integral part of the decision-making 
process.  

4. The responsibility for discharging the duty rests with the public 
authority even if it has delegated any functions to a third party.  
Responsibility for discharging the duty cannot be delegated or 
subcontracted.  Any third parties exercising public functions on 
the public authority’s  behalf are required to comply with the duty  

5. Regard must be given to the need to advance equality whenever 
a policy is implemented or reviewed. 

The public sector equality duty protects people from discrimination on the 
basis of certain characteristics which are known as protected characteristics.  
There are 9 protected characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage or civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex (gender), and sexual orientation.  Details of each of the protected 
characteristics are provided in Appendix 1. With regard to marriage or civil 
partnership, protection is provided in employment and vocational training only.

In addition to the 9 protected characteristics, Rochdale MBC also includes the 
following two categories: carers and Armed Forces and Ex -Armed Forces 
personnel, when undertaking an equality impact assessment.



3

Version2 Review Date March  2015

Undertaking an analysis of the impact that a proposed change to the 
way a service may have on equality

An impact assessment proforma needs to be completed when undertaking an 
analysis of the impact that a function, strategy, policy or project may have 
upon equality.  Please complete the RMBC template proforma.  The 
completed equality impact assessment should be attached to the Cabinet 
report.  

Undertaking an equality impact analysis involves:

 identifying who should be involved in the equality impact analysis.

 describing the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project and the 
needs that it is designed to meet.

 identifying the key stakeholders.

 assessing the impact that the function/strategy/policy/project has on 
race equality, disabled people, carers, older and younger people, men 
and women, Armed Forces and Ex-
Armed Forces personnel, religion or belief, sexual orientation, 
transsexuals or transgender, people who have undergone gender 
reassignment in full, pregnant women and those on maternity leave 
and on married people or those in a civil partnership.  This includes 
both positive and negative impacts.

 stating the main conclusions from the analysis and list your 
recommendations.

 consulting your stakeholders on the main findings and conclusions of 
the equality impact analysis. The information and insights that can be 
gained from involvement and consultation are essential, and 
involvement and consultation should also usually be carried out as part 
of the main policy development process.

 producing an impact analysis action plan.  A template for this action 
plan is included in the RMBC template proforma.  Details of this action 
plan should be included in your service delivery plan.  This action plan 
should state what action you propose to take to eliminate or mitigate 
any potential adverse impacts which have been identified.

To conduct the analysis you will need to gather the existing information 
available to you, which will enable you to identify whether your proposed 



4

Version2 Review Date March  2015

changes may give rise to a discriminatory outcome or unmet need.   
Examples of some of this information  are:

 Demographic data (i.e. census information)
 The findings of Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs), customer 

insight initiatives, service reviews and  recent inspections
 An equality profile of your customers, i.e. information on which groups 

use or receive your service and information on those who do not use or 
receive your service but may wish to do so etc.

 Consultation information, complaints data, feedback from customers, 
research information such as MORI poll and citizens’ panel information.

 Views of frontline and other staff, stakeholders and key partners
 Local, regional and national research
 Information on how the community is informed of the service, whether 

the service is targeted at a particular group/community, the different 
formats and languages in which this information is provided, how the 
users access the service and how the service take-up is evaluated.

 Service outcomes such as what they are, how they are measured, 
what is done with the information collected, how it is used in the service 
planning process, what evidence is there of service improvement.

During your analysis you need to state the relevant data which you have 
considered and state if you identified any gaps in the data and what 
mechanisms have been put in place to close the gaps.

To assess the impact that the function/strategy/policy/project has on equality 
for different groups or communities, you should consider the following 
questions:

 What positive impacts will this function/strategy/policy/project have 
upon the protected groups?

 Is there any evidence of, or potential for unequal outcomes or 
disadvantage?

 Are there, or could there be barriers to accessing the service?  E.g. 
language, physical access etc

 Is there any evidence of unmet needs, or potential that needs will 
not be met?

 Could the strategy/project encourage greater participation by a 
particular group or community where this is low?

 Could the strategy/project be developed to further foster good 
relations between different groups/communities?

Equality Impact Assessments should be proportionate, that is, the time and 
effort involved should be in proportion to the relevance of the policy or 
practices, being assessed, to equality.



5

Version2 Review Date March  2015

Consulting those affected by the proposals

When consulting on draft service savings proposals the Council is required to 
comply with the common law standard for consultation established by the 
courts.  A high court ruling R (on the application of W) -v -Birmingham City 
Council [2011] EWHC 1147 highlighted the following principles which should 
be adhered to:

 Provide consultees with sufficient reasons in support of particular 
proposals to allow an intelligent response to be made.

 Ensure that the consultation looks at the practical detail of what the 
proposal will entail.

 Ensure that consultees are provided with clear information and that they 
understand what they are being consulted on and what the changes mean.

 Ensure that all the documents being issued as part of the consultation are 
published together at the start of the consultation period.

 Ensuring that an easy read version of the consultation proposals are made 
available for those who need them.

 Ensure that consultation responses are taken into account when the 
ultimate decision is taken.

 It is important to ensure that the consultation process is accessible and 
that consultees are provided information in the most appropriate way and 
in the format which meets their specific needs.

Please note that the Council has:

 a separate equality impact assessment template to complete for 
savings proposals

 a corporate Consultation Strategy which it is currently being updated.  
For further details please contact Amy Foots or Joanne Brickell. 

Details of Useful Contacts

If you require any further advice relating to:

Undertaking an Equality Impact Assessment please contact Sally Atueyi.  
Telephone Ext. 5631 Email: sally.atueyi@rochdale.gov.uk

Consulting stakeholders please contact:
Amy Foots Telephone Ext. 5233 Email: amy.foots@rochdale .gov.uk or 
Joanne Brickell Telephone Ext. 5031 Email: joanne.brickell.gov.uk



6

Version2 Review Date March  2015

APPENDIX 1

The 9 Protected Characteristics

Protected Characteristic Comment
Age Protection is for over 18’s only.  Age can be 

defined in different ways e.g. it can refer to a 
person of a particular age, or belonging to an 
age group or age range.

Disability Defined as “a physical or mental impairment 
which has a substantial and long term 
adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry 
out normal day to day activities.”  It is now 
easier to meet the definition.

Gender reassignment Protection is provided when someone has 
proposed, started or completed a process to 
change their sex.  There is no requirement to 
be undergoing medical supervision.

Marriage or civil partnership Protection is provided in employment and 
vocational training only.  

Pregnancy and maternity For all areas covered by the Act a woman is 
protected from unfavourable treatment 
because of pregnancy or because she has 
given birth in the previous 26 weeks, or 
because she is on maternity leave.

Race Includes colour nationality, and ethnic or 
national origins. 

Religion or belief The religion can be any religion – it doesn’t 
have to be a mainstream religion.
Belief refers to any religious of philosophical 
belief and includes Humanism and Atheism.

Sex (gender)
Sexual orientation This refers to whether a person’s sexual 

attraction is towards their own sex, the 
opposite sex or both sexes.

Please note: In addition to the 9 protected characteristics, Rochdale MBC also 
includes the following two categories: carers and Armed Forces and Ex -
Armed Forces personnel, when undertaking an equality impact assessment.



Subject: TBA site - an update Status:  Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Public 
Health and Regulation

Date: Wednesday, 16 September 
2015

 

Report of: Director of Economy & Environment

Author Email:    andy.glover@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Andy Glover

Tel: Tel: 01706 924105

1 Purpose of Report

1.1     This report updates members of Rochdale Township Committee on the latest 
position regarding the TBA site.

2 Recommendations

2.1     Members are recommended to note and comment upon the information 
provided in the report.

3 Update – report submitted to Informal Cabinet

3.1    The TBA site has been of long-running concern for the local communities which 
surround it.  The Council has always sought to work with the landowners’ 
representatives (UK Land and Property or UKLPR) for the safe management of 
the site, now and in the future.  This requires appropriate dialogue with UKLPR 
to ensure that any risks arising from the site are kept to a minimum; for instance, 
appropriate site security is to be maintained.  

3.2   On 13 August 2015, a report was presented to Informal Cabinet outlining the 
history of the site and details of current site management.  Members considered 
the report in detail and asked for further information to be provided.  A report 
containing the requested information will now be presented to Informal Cabinet 
on 8 October 2015.         

4          Update - Air Quality Monitoring

4.1     The Council is keen to better understand the risks (if any) posed by the site 
which may arise from its industrial history.  As a result, the Council has 
commissioned a firm to undertake sampling around the perimeter of the site, to 
gather data on whether asbestos levels in the air are within expected 
parameters.  



4.2      The work is being undertaken by Bureau Veritas of Didsbury.  Monitoring 
equipment will be placed at 4 carefully selected locations.  These locations will 
be secure (placed within residents’ gardens with their full agreement), and 
between them will cover the full circumference of the site.  In order to act as a 
comparator, it is also proposed that an additional “control” unit should be 
housed on the roof of Number One Riverside. 

4.3      The exercise is due to commence in September 2015.  Under the agreed 
Sample Analysis Plan, monthly samples will then be taken over the next 12 
months until August 2016.  A total of 5 samples will be taken each month 
(including the control sample).  Of the 4 monthly non-control samples, 3 will be 
analysed by optical microscopy and 1 by electron microscopy (which has a 
higher resolution but a greater cost).  All filter papers will be retained, thereby 
giving the Council the option to undertake future electron microscopy (subject 
to findings and future finances).  The control sample will be analysed by optical 
microscopy.  

4.4      The methodology to be used by Bureau Veritas for counting asbestos fibres is 
based on standard industry practice and will be carried out by competent and 
accredited analysts.   The only aspect which requires any local consideration is 
the location of sites from which the monitoring will be undertaken.  This will be 
determined by the physical location of the preferred sites, which will 
demonstrate a lack of obstructions (eg fences) and will be able to provide 
security for monitoring equipment.

4.5      The air quality monitoring exercise was publicly discussed at the last meeting of 
the Spotland and Falinge Area Forum on 21 May 2015, as evidenced by the 
minutes of that meeting (please see link below):    
   
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=539&MId=
3538&Ver=4

4.6      The full cost of this exercise will be borne by Rochdale Council.  It is proposed 
that the outcome of the sampling will be shared with Spotland and Falinge Area 
Forum as well as Rochdale Township.        

      Alternatives considered
The Council is under no obligation to undertake the monitoring of the site’s 
perimeter.  However, the Council is keen to understand the nature of any risk 
posed by the site and as such the sampling is an appropriate step which will 
hopefully provide reassurance for local residents.  

5 Financial Implications       

5.1 The cost of the sampling cannot be disclosed for reasons of commercial 
sensitivity.   However, as stated in the report, the full cost of the sampling will 
be borne by Rochdale Council.      

6  Legal Implications

6.1      There are no legal implications arising from the decision to undertake the 
perimeter sampling.  Once the outcome is known, this will form part of the 
Council’s thinking in terms of its stance with regard to the site.     

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=539&MId=3538&Ver=4
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=539&MId=3538&Ver=4


7 Personnel Implications

7.1      There are no Personnel implications arising from this report.   

8 Corporate Priorities

8.1     This report contributes to the Council’s 2014/15 Corporate Plan in the following 
ways:

 People – increased healthy life and wellbeing

9 Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1    The Council is keen to better understand the nature of risk posed by the site.  
The perimeter sampling will enable the Council to determine the risk (if any) 
posed to local residents by air-borne transmission of asbestos.    

10 Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised in this report as 
set out below: summarise key issues from, and cross ref to EIA, even if EIA appended 
to report

The TBA site is a major issue for the Council and local residents in terms of its 
potential impact on local communities.  The air quality monitoring exercise is intended 
to help clarify the position regarding possible health risks, and this professional 
exercise will provide a wealth of data which will help the Council to better understand 
this issue.  

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection



1

APPENDIX 

Equality Impact Assessment

 

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below.

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below

X

Service:

Economy and Environment

Section: 

Public Protection

Responsible Officer:

A Glover

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Air Quality Monitoring at TBA site

Date of Assessment:

4.9.15

Officers Involved:

A Glover

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

The purpose of the Air Quality Monitoring exercise is to provide the Council with greater detail about the 
level of air-borne contamination (asbestos) which may emerge from the TBA site.



2

2.Who are the key stakeholders?

Council (officers and elected members)

Local communities in the vicinity of the site

Company carrying out the monitoring exercise

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  

This assessment relates to the air quality monitoring exercise referred to above.  The work is being undertaken by 
Bureau Veritas of Didsbury.  Monitoring equipment will be placed at 4 carefully selected locations.  These 
locations will be secure (placed within residents’ gardens with their full agreement), and between them will 
cover the full circumference of the site.  In order to act as a comparator, it is also proposed that an additional 
“control” unit should be housed on the roof of Number One Riverside. The exercise is due to commence in 
September 2015.  Under the agreed Sample Analysis Plan, monthly samples will then be taken over the 
next 12 months until August 2016.  A total of 5 samples will be taken each month (including the control 
sample).  Of the 4 monthly non-control samples, 3 will be analysed by optical microscopy and 1 by electron 
microscopy (which has a higher resolution but a greater cost).  All filter papers will be retained, thereby 
giving the Council the option to undertake future electron microscopy (subject to findings and future 
finances).  The control sample will be analysed by optical microscopy.  The methodology to be used by 
Bureau Veritas for counting asbestos fibres is based on standard industry practice and will be carried out by 
competent and accredited analysts.   The only aspect which requires any local consideration is the location 
of sites from which the monitoring will be undertaken.  This will be determined by the physical location of the 
preferred sites, which will demonstrate a lack of obstructions (eg fences) and will be able to provide security 
for monitoring equipment.

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

The needs of both the Council and local residents to be reassured about the level of risk caused by air-borne 
contamination of asbestos.

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

The subject of possible contamination from the TBA site has been a matter of local concern for some years.  It is 
hoped that the monitoring exercise referred to here will help to reassure local residents.

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

Local residents who live in the vicinity of the site.

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

The Spotland and Falinge Area Forum has been consulted on this matter on 21 May 2015.



3

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

The data will plug the gap in terms of providing more information relating to possible air-borne contamination 
of asbestos.  No testing of this nature has been done before so the results will provide information which is 
not currently available.   

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

N/a

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

Race Equality 

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of ethnicity.  The residential areas 
around the site are of mixed ethnicity.

Disabled People

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of disability.  There is no data to 
suggest that the residential areas around the site have high / low levels of disability.

Carers

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of caring responsibilities.  There is 
no data to suggest that the residential areas around the site have high / low levels of caring.

Gender

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of gender.  There is no data to 
suggest that the residential areas around the site are dominated by one gender or the other.

Age

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of age.  There is no data to suggest 
that the residential areas around the site are dominated by any particular age group.

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of military status.  There is no data 
to suggest that the residential areas around the site have high / low levels of military status.

Sexual Orientation



4

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of sexual orientation.  There is no 
data to suggest that the residential areas around the site are dominated by persons with any particular 
sexual orientation.

Gender Reassignment

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of gender reassignment.  There is 
no data to suggest that the residential areas around the site have high / low levels of gender reassignment.

Religion or Belief

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of religion or belief.  There is no 
data to suggest that the residential areas around the site are dominated by persons with any particular 
religion or belief.

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of pregnancy.  There is no data to 
suggest that the residential areas around the site have high / low levels of pregnancy.

Marriage or Civil Partnership

The issue of air-borne contamination will affect all residents irrespective of marital status.  

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

That the survey will provide valuable data which will be of use to both officers and residents in the future.  

12.What are your recommendations?

That the survey should go ahead and the data shared with residents once sufficient has been gathered to 
make it meaningful (it is thought this will be after 6 months).

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

See below.

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________



5



6

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2014/15

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion

Resource 
Implications

Lead Officer

Undertake the Air Quality 
Monitoring exercise. 

Gain a better understanding of the 
level of air-borne contamination 
from the site.

August 2016 Funding for the survey
Officers to analyse / disseminate 
results

A Glover



7



Subject: Armed Forces Report Status:  Publication

Report to: All Township Committees

Cabinet Member: Cllr. McCarthy, Lead Member 
for the Armed Forces

Date: W/c Monday 14th September 
2015

 

Report of: Julian Massel, Head of Customer and 
Corporate Services

Author Email:    valery.white@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Val White

Tel: 01706 924858

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To inform members of the work carried out in relation to the Armed Forces family 
since the Council signed the Armed Forces Community Covenant in November 
2012.

1.2 To highlight the increase in the amount of support given to members of the Armed      
Forces family, and the number of activities and high profile events that it has been 
possible to deliver since the recruitment of a full-time Armed Forces Support 
Officer.

1.3 To give Members the opportunity to address Caen Matthews, Armed Forces 
Support Officer, with any comments or questions.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That Members note the information contained within the report and as detailed in 
Appendix ‘A’.

Reason for recommendation

2.2 To ensure that Members are aware of the number of successful Armed Forces 
projects and events that have taken place in Rochdale Borough since 
November 2012.

3 Background

3.1 Rochdale Borough Council signed its Armed Forces Community Covenant in 
November 2012. In doing so the Council gave a commitment to do all it could 
to assist former service personnel in the Borough, in recognition of the huge 
sacrifices they and their families have made for their country.

3.2 On 15th May 2013 Councillor Alan McCarthy was formally appointed to the 



position of Lead Member for the Armed Forces.

3.3 2013 saw a steady increase in the amount of support that was needed across 
the Borough, ranging from the organisation and coordination of events, to one 
to one personal support and advice.

3.4 In January 2014 a temporary 18 month post was created to support Cllr. 
McCarthy and the Armed Forces work.  That post has been extended until 
December 2015.  

3.5 Since that post was created Rochdale Borough has been at the forefront of 
Armed Forces activities, events have received both regional and national 
recognition, and the Council was awarded a National Silver Award at the North 
West Armed Forces Business Awards in June 2015. The work which the 
Council does is recognised as best practice by the Royal British Legion to the 
extent that examples of our work are featured in the Royal British Legion’s 
guide to the Armed Forces Community Covenant. 

4 Alternatives considered

4.1 No alternatives have been considered.

5 Financial Implications

5.1 This report is for information only, there are no financial implications arising 
from the report.

6  Legal Implications

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

7 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

8 Corporate Priorities

8.1 The work of the Armed Forces Support Officer is in line with the Council’s 
Corporate priorities – People, Place and Prosperity

9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 There are no risk implications arising from this report.

10. Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments
There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.Background Papers

Document Place of Inspection
Armed Forces Update Appendix ‘A’



ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

ARMED FORCES UPDATE TO TOWNSHIPS – SEPTEMBER 2015

 28th November 2012
Rochdale Borough Council signed Armed Forces Community Covenant. 

Rochdale Borough Council formally committed itself to doing all it can to help former Service 
personnel in the borough in recognition of the huge sacrifices that members of the Armed 
Forces and their families make for the country. At a special ceremony at Rochdale Town 
Hall, council leaders joined with representatives of the NHS, Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing and Link4Life to sign the Armed Forces Community Covenant, a voluntary 
statement of mutual support between the borough and the Services.

 17th April 2013

Lance Corporal Stephen Shaw MC

Members were made aware of the award of the Military Cross to L/Cpl. Stephen Shaw from 
Heywood. Stephen’s citation reads: “Shaw’s actions during that horrific attack were in the 
very finest traditions of the British Army. Despite being shot through the boot and day sack, 
this young and inexperienced soldier had the presence of mind to return fire and give 
directions to his commander. “He then took the deliberate decision to enter the killing area, 
where four of his colleagues lay wounded.”

Hundreds of people took to the streets to show their support as the town marked the bravery 
of Lance Corporal Stephen Shaw MC who was awarded Freedom of the Borough during a 
moving ceremony at Heywood Civic Centre.



Armed Forces Community Covenant Progress

Since the Borough signed the Armed Forces Community Covenant on the 28th November 
2012 there was been numerous activity, developments and delivery:

The Armed Forces project team had its inaugural meeting on Thursday the 17th January 
2013 and continues to meet on a quarterly basis. Draft Terms of Reference were agreed. 
The group adopted a strategic approach, set up operational sub groups to action key issues 
based on the five themes of The Ministry of Defence, namely Education, Employment, 
Housing, Welfare and Health and Wellbeing.

Armed Forces Web-Site

A Website was developed to include links to all available services in one hit; all members are 
contributing with detail to ensure easy and obvious signposting to services. 

NHS held a well-attended Military Veteran and Armed Forces Community Information Event 
and a service information leaflet has been produced and distributed.

The Army Engagement Team held a very well attended information event.

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/armed_forces_personnel/contact_the_armed_forces_team.aspx

 May 28, 2013

Rochdale Armed Forces Champion made Honorary Member of the Aden Veterans 
Association

 May 29, 2013

Service for Drummer Lee Rigby

 June 20, 2013

The North West Aden Veterans Association adopted Heywood as their preferred location for 
remembrance events and received the towns’ full support.

 18th July 2013

Organised Events to celebrate Armed Forces Events 2013 throughout the Borough.

Flags were raised for the first time in all Townships. The veterans attended the tea dance 
with the mayor to celebrate Armed Forces week. A trip to Crown Carvery was organised for 
veterans so that they could take advantage of the free meals for Armed Forces offer. 

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/armed_forces_personnel/contact_the_armed_forces_team.aspx


Information stalls were located at Number One Riverside all week to raise support for the 
Armed Forces.

Prepared and drafted a proposal seeking member approval to implement a 
guaranteed interview to qualifying ex armed forces personnel.

This proposal was prepared in readiness to respond to the redundancies planned across the 
Armed Forces. We now have a policy in place. The aim of this policy is to deliver the 
Councils commitment to further ‘the Armed Forces Community Covenant’, the purpose of 
which is, in essence, ‘to ensure that the armed forces are not disadvantaged as a result of 
their service’

Assistance was given to eight Applicants for the Artic Star Medal

Given help to veterans so that they could access Link4Life facilities.

 Given assistance to ex-armed forces in dealing with housing issues

 July 5, 2013

Council Leader Cllr Colin Lambert announced that a lasting Tribute “befitting to the memory 
and bravery” of Fusilier Lee Rigby would be made.

 July 18, 2013

Armed Forces leavers guaranteed job interviews in Rochdale’s new scheme

Ex armed forces men and women would now be guaranteed a job interview at Rochdale 
Borough Council, providing they meet the person specification and job description and have 
been out of the Armed Forces for a minimum of six months. 

The move, one of the first of its kind in the UK, with Rochdale being the only local authority 
to approve such a scheme, was aimed at strengthening the Council’s commitment to the 
Armed Forces.

 July 23, 2013

Forgotten Wars and All Veterans – Past – Present – Future WW1 Centenary 
Commemorations memorials

Rochdale Council finalised plans for the commemorations of the 2014 – 2018 WW1 
Centenary, it was not  in celebration, but rather in solemn reflection and remembrance of all 
those who have died and have served in our Armed Forces since the start of the Great War.

To that end Rochdale Council commemorated the centenary by new memorial plaques, 
namely: A Veterans and Forgotten Wars Memorial plaque in all four Townships

 July 27, 2013

60th Anniversary of Korean War



Wreaths Laid

 September 9, 2013
Battlefield visits for school children to commemorate the 100th anniversary of first 
world war, and school visits.

We wrote to all schools in the Borough to ensure all were aware of a project for thousands of 
state school pupils to visit battlefields which was among the educational initiatives that 
commemorated the 100th anniversary of the First World War.

 September 24, 2013

Royal British Legion choses Rochdale Council as role model for its commitment to its 
Armed Forces work

The Royal British Legion praised Rochdale Council as a model of best practice for its 
commitment to working with the Armed Forces communities within its borough.

 October 8, 2013

 Rochdale Council set to support our British Nuclear Test Veterans

Rochdale Council was contacted by The British Nuclear Test Veterans Association, who 
praised our role as a lead Council with regards to the Armed Forces Community Covenant 
along with a request we consider supporting their campaign for recognition.

 October 9, 2013

 Rochdale Council launched Corporate Armed Forces Covenant

The Government had recently announced the launch of the Armed Forces Corporate 
Covenant. It was aimed at businesses who wanted to show their support to the armed forces 
community by signing a Corporate Covenant and that they could tailor to what they wished 
to pledge. They then registered with the MOD Covenant team.

 A corporate covenant is a written and publicised voluntary pledge from businesses and 
charitable organisations who wish to demonstrate their concrete support for the armed 
forces community.

 October 23, 2013

Heywood WW1 Centenary Commemorations commenced

Various additions were made to the Heywood Memorial Gardens in preparation for the 
upcoming WW1 Centenary Commemorations, the left flank memorial and all additions would 
be dedicated in 2015. 



Work on the inscriptions for the new Forgotten Wars and Veterans Memorial commenced by 
a local stonemason, works on the additional stone carved and painted flags to the present 
memorial also started, again by a local Heywood Sculptor.

 November 19, 2013

“Welcome home” – Rochdale salutes Fusiliers in homecoming parade

The Rochdale community came out in force to welcome home hundreds of soldiers who had 
returned from serving in Afghanistan.

The First Battalion of the Royal Regiment of Fusiliers paraded through Rochdale Town 
Centre while hundreds of well-wishers lined the streets to show their appreciation

The event was the first of just six parades to be held across the UK.

The town was bestowed the honour to host the parade in recognition of its historical links to 
the Fusiliers since 1881 and its continuous support for the Armed Forces.

The Fusiliers were awarded Freedom of the Borough in 1947.

 January 13, 2014

Driving force – Rochdale firm’s armed forces pledge

RRG Toyota became the first organisation in Rochdale to sign the Armed Forces Corporate 
Covenant. The signing of the covenant by the leading car dealer on Edinburgh Way 
recognises their continuing support of the armed forces community and their recognition of 
the value of serving personnel, veterans and military families. 

  



 

 22nd JANUARY 2014

LINK4LIFE

The Link4Life Board approved not only the continuance of the current scheme to provide 
free use of facilities to serving soldiers in its current form for a further twelve months to 31st 
December 2014 but to extend it to unemployed Veterans. The scheme was subject to a 
quarterly monitor and review process.

Key facts:-

 877 gym visits and 204 swims, total usage = 1,081

 38% of users used the facilities 3 times a week or more, 28% twice a week and 23% once a 
week on average whilst on leave.

80% of these users have reported that the activities experienced at Link4Life have 
contributed to both their physical fitness and mental well-being with the remaining 20% 
reporting that this contributes to just their physical fitness.

100% of users would recommend our facilities to friends and family and wish to continue 
using Link4Life facilities.  60% report that they would be interested in supporting sports 
activity programmes within the community.

WW1 CENTENARY

£80,000 Capital funding was approved for WW1 Centenary events/projects. Each Township 
received £20,000 for use on capital projects between 2014 and 2018.

 January 6, 2014
Dedicated Armed Forces Support Worker

Funding was approved to recruit a (temporary) full-time Officer to support the Armed Forces 
Family.  Rochdale became the first authority in Greater Manchester to develop such a role. 
Caen Matthews is an Armed Forces Veteran who is able to recognise, understand and 
respond to the needs of veterans and their families. 

The existence of this dedicated post has significantly increased the capacity to deliver 
Armed Forces events and the ability of Rochdale Council to deliver on its commitment to the 
Armed Forces Covenant.



 January 19, 2014

 Rochdale Township WW1 Centenary Commemorations begin

Rochdale Memorial Gardens underwent a £35,000 improvement programme ahead of 
commemorations for the centenary of the outbreak of World War One in July.

The improvement works included:

Replacing the six lime trees either side of the sunken garden steps with small birch trees to 
avoid further root damage to the retaining wall and repairing existing cracks;

Tree planting around the orchard near the police station;

Digging out the rose beds and replacing the soil and flowers in the regimental colours of The 
Royal Regiment of Fusiliers;

Removing a diseased tree overshadowing the rose beds and planting replacement trees

 February 1, 2014

 Free fitness for Armed Forces extended

Armed forces personnel would continue to enjoy free use of Link4Life fitness facilities and 
swimming pools.  Following a successful pilot, Link4Life, which manages leisure and cultural 
facilities on behalf of Rochdale Borough Council, decided to extend the offer to local 
veterans who were out of work.

February 12, 2014

Seven new names added to First World War memorial

The names of W Parkinson, J McIntyre, B C Butterworth, E Collinge, H Armstrong, J 
Thornley and H Olden were officially dedicated at the Heywood memorial.

 March 25, 2014

 Legion’s new Rochdale base opens

The Royal British Legion opened a weekly base at Number One Riverside in Rochdale.

Every Thursday they have a staffed desk on the ground floor of the multi-use public building 
in the town centre, alongside the library and council customer service advisors, providing 
help and advice to anyone from the Armed Forces Community.

http://www.link4life.org/


 2nd April 2014

AGMA Co-ordination

RBC Deputy Chief Executive Linda Fisher was chosen to lead on Armed Forces across all 
ten Local Authorities in Greater Manchester. This would ensure that on a larger footprint we 
could really start to make a difference in how we identified and supported our Armed Forces 
Families. 

Media Coverage

The work being delivered in Rochdale continued to receive national attention and coverage 
and we were featured in “Army and You’ Magazine recently. Our work on guaranteed 
interviews was spoken about by Simon Weston. 

Dedicated Contact

The dedicated Armed Forces contact and telephone number has directly assisted several 
veterans in housing, adaptations, school places, furniture, white goods and financial issues.

Dedicated Tailored Armed Forces Web Pages

Rochdale’s website proved to be very successful, with members of the Armed Forces from 
as far afield as Canada getting in touch to enquire about relocating to Rochdale, and the 
pages having received over 18,000 views in its first 5 months.

Books on Prescription

The Books on Prescription Scheme was launched on Monday the 24th February 2014 at 
Rochdale Central Library in Number One Riverside. The scheme allows Doctors and other 
healthcare professionals to prescribe patients with mild to moderate mental health problems 
appropriate books to read and, through the Armed Forces Covenant; the Books on 
Prescription Scheme would be fully accessible to Armed Forces and Veterans.

Street Naming/Re-Naming

A Street naming / re-naming policy offered the families of fallen Service personnel who have 
died in active duty and were from the borough, the chance to have a street named after their 
loved one. Such lasting recognition, if this is the wish of the family, is being a poignant way 
to demonstrate the community’s admiration for those who serve.

Discretionary Crisis Fund

The Council has agreed to extend its discretionary crisis fund to the Armed Forces and has 
already supported veterans who have found themselves in difficulty.

Service Providers sign up to covenant

The Drug and Alcohol Action Team re-commissioned substance misuse services to start in 
April 2014. The following service providers were successful in their application and as part of 
the contract they signed up to the community covenant:



• Pennine Care Mental Health Trust

• High Level Northern Trust

• Early Break.

Helping Veterans Obtain Medals

Rochdale Council worked closely with veterans to support them in completing and submitting 
application forms to obtain medals rightly owed to them due to the great bravery of those 
who contributed to two very significant campaigns of World War Two.

 May 27, 2014

VC Hero Honoured

Lance Corporal Joel Halliwell V.C, Middleton’s Victoria Cross recipient, was recognised with 
the unveiling of a street sign in his honour in Middleton Town Centre. Corporation Street is 
now named L.Cpl. Joel Halliwell V.C. Way.  A large crowd gathered for a short ceremony 
and the unveiling of the new street sign, exactly 96 years to the day since his act of bravery.

 June 25, 2014

 Simon Weston OBE flies the flag for Armed Forces Day

Simon Weston OBE – the nation’s favourite hero, was the star guest at a glittering business 
event at Rochdale Town Hall attended by over 300 guests comprising businesses, veterans, 
cadets and community representatives.

The Falklands veteran, author and charity supporter talked candidly about his life story – 
from the devastating injuries he sustained when his ship, Sir Galahad was attacked, to his 
subsequent life as a public figure and motivational speaker.

The event was held to encourage businesses in the borough to sign up to the Corporate 
Covenant.

 July 18, 2014

 Council chief meets Prime Minister at Armed Forces celebration

Rochdale Borough Councils Acting Chief Executive visited Number 10 Downing Street. 
Linda Fisher was invited by Prime Minister David Cameron to a special Armed Forces 
reception, held to celebrate the work being done across the country to support the Armed 
Forces Community Covenant. Rochdale has been recognised nationally for the progress 
made since they signed the covenant in 2012.

 July 24, 2014

 Army Celebrates Close Links with Rochdale Borough Council

The Army’s event team were welcomed by Rochdale Borough Council during a Full Council 
meeting on 24 July where they spoke on the changing face of the Service.



Major Twumasi-Ankrah, known as T-A, of the Household gave a presentation entitled Your 
Army, which included sections on what the Army is, what is does, how it is changing, how it 
works with local communities, and in particular how it will work with the council.

 August 6, 2014

 Fallen soldiers remembered in town centre service

Around 60 members of the public joined town centre Chaplain Rev Margaret Smith for a 
poignant service at Rochdale Memorial Gardens – marking the day Britain declared war.

 August 6, 2014

 Memorial plaque unveiled

A special memorial event on Monday 4 August was held to mark a century since Great 
Britain’s entry into the First World War. Transport for Greater Manchester Chief Executive 
and former RAF Air Vice Marshal, Dr Jon Lamonte and Rochdale Council Leader, Councillor 
Richard Farnell were joined by fusiliers to unveil a memorial plaque at Rochdale 
Interchange.

 August 10, 2014

Rochdale Hosts WW1 Commemorative March

The centre of Rochdale came to a virtual standstill as a commemorative march took place 
between Todmorden and Rochdale Town Hall.

The historic re-enactment marked the hundredth anniversary of a march by members of the 
Lancashire fusiliers on their way to the Gallipoli campaign in Turkey.

The march attracted local and national coverage across both print and television media and 
was extremely well attended by the people of Rochdale along the entire route.



 August 14, 2014

 Street Art: Images through the Generations Inspired by World War One

Local street artist Liam Dean was commissioned to create a billboard sized art work 
reflecting the thoughts and words of the community through the generations. Wishing to 
reflect the multicultural nature of the borough and to gather the generations together for a 
cohesive, creative art work.

 August 17, 2014

Recognition by The Victoria Cross Organisation on Rochdale Council’s recent 
renovation works to our 3 VC plots

 August 19, 2014

Royal Regiment of Fusiliers Soldiers Retrace WW1 Route

Soldiers from the Royal Regiment of Fusiliers re-traced a march which was done by their 
fore bears one hundred years earlier. On 7th August 1914, more than 1,000 soldiers from 
the 6th Battalion of the Lancashire Fusiliers marched from a small town in Yorkshire to fight 
in the Gallipoli Campaign in Turkey

 August 24, 2014

Street renamed in honour of Crimean War VC recipient.

Jim Dobbin MP, Councillors, veterans and members of the public gathered to pay respect to 
a true hero as a street in Heywood was renamed in commemoration of Private Anthony 
Palmer, a soldier in the Crimean War and Victoria Cross recipient, who is buried in Heywood 
Cemetery.

 September 3, 2014

Heritage Lottery Fund awarded £9,800 to Rochdale Borough Council to mark First 
World War Centenary

Rochdale Borough Council, in partnership with Link4Life, received £9,800 from the Heritage 
Lottery Fund (HLF) for a project, Gone But Not Forgotten awarded through its First World 
War: then and now programme. The project encouraged and helped the local community to 
commemorate and explore the impact of the First World War on Rochdale borough.

 September 15, 2014

 Wreaths laid for those who went ‘A bridge too far’

Rochdale Borough Council paid its respects to those who fought and died at the Battle of 
Arnhem during the Second World War.



 29th September 2014

Corporate Covenant

Seven more local firms showed their support for the Armed Forces by signing the Armed 
Forces Corporate Covenant bringing the total of sign-ups to 9.  Senior representatives from 
all the businesses signed the Covenant at Rochdale Town Hall. Rochdale Style Magazine 
attended and they ran a feature in their next edition.

 November 2014

 World War One floral display is an award-winner

A commemorative floral tribute which marked 100 years since the beginning of World War 
One received a ‘Highly Commended for Excellence’ award from North West in Bloom.

The display in Broadfield Park of the classic poppy and a simple ‘1914 – 2014 Centenary’ 
message created a highly visible landmark to all traffic travelling along Manchester Road.

 November 19, 2014

Rochdale Hornets Rugby Football League Club sign up to Rochdale Council’s Armed 
Forces Covenant

 January 2, 2015  

Army Careers Office returns to Rochdale

The Army Careers Office now has a weekly base at Number One Riverside in Rochdale.

 21st January 2015

Armed Forces Family Centre

Rochdale BC Military Covenant Team is working towards opening an Armed Forces Family 
Centre that will provide support facilities to Armed Forces personnel and their families.

The Armed Forces Family Centre would be managed by the Council with an Armed Forces 
Coordination Officer promoting the services available in this one stop shop for the Armed 
Forces family. The centre would run like a community/drop in centre. This would be 
accommodated by partner organisations like British Legion, Cadet Forces, SSAFA and the 
MOD. These organisations will require the use of ICT Facilities. The centre will also be a 
drop in centre for the Armed Forces family and courses will be run from the centre. 

A funding bid is to be submitted in late 2015. 



Remembrance Sunday Annually

Services across the Borough were extremely well attended, and a number of schools took 
part.

Armed Forces Capital Fund

A number of projects have been undertaken, or are ongoing, in Pennines Township 
including:

- The paving around Littleborough War Memorial has been repointed

- Restoration of Wardle Cenotaph including re gilding of engraved lettering, clean up 
and general maintenance. The garden area has also been enhanced with new planting 
design to compliment the work undertaken on the Cenotaph

- Funding has also been approved to re-black the lettering on Littleborough and Shore 
Memorials

- Funds were awarded for a project to commemorate the outbreak of World War One; 
the project brought together local schools in creating and displaying art and literature around 
the themes of sacrifice, courage, loyalty, forgiveness and reconciliation. The work was then 
displayed at St Andrews Church during Remembrance weekend for all to see.

 20 January 2015

Children recreated London’s Armistice Day tribute to the First World War by planting a sea of 
poppies.

Pupils from Smithy Bridge Primary School created a display of 420 ceramic flowers in 
Rochdale Memorial Gardens, inspired by the stunning display at the Tower of London last 
year.

 January 24, 2015

 World War One Poetry Competition

Fantastic afternoon listening and presenting awards to the youth of the borough for their 
excellent and inspiring poems on WW1

 March 9, 2015

Roll of honour remembers our fallen heroes

The names and details of over 2,500 men who died in the First World War were published 
on a roll of honour.



 March 29, 2015

Fusilier Lee Rigby Memorial

A memorial to mark the "ultimate sacrifice" of murdered soldier Lee Rigby was unveiled in 
his home town of Middleton.

Family and friends of Fusilier Rigby, gathered for a dedication service at Middleton Memorial 
Gardens where a bronze drum and a plaque in his honour went on public display.

Fusilier Rigby - a drummer and machine gunner with the 2nd Battalion Royal Regiment of 
Fusiliers - was killed outside his barracks in Woolwich, south-east London, in May 2013. 

 15th April 2015

Military covenant funding

It was a successful start to the year regarding military covenant funding. After a visit to the 
sea cadets training centre TS Frobisher we have been successful in securing £25,000 worth 
of funding as part of an ongoing refurbishment programme. 

Alternate Forces have also been successful in their funding bid. They have recently secured 
the former TS Palatine outward bound centre at Hollingworth Lake. They have recently 
worked with youth groups, veterans and those suffering from mild mental health issues. 
They have also offered the centre out to the cadets to use as a water and land based 
outward bound centre.

 June 28, 2015

Gallipoli Memorial Stone

A permanent memorial was unveiled in Rochdale to honour the service of local men who 
fought in one of the bloodiest campaigns of the First World War, and the sacrifices made by 
their relatives at home.

The event included a parade through Rochdale Town Centre



Armed Forces week

Armed Forces week was a busy one in 2015, events started on the 19th June with afternoon 
tea with the mayor for around 60 family descendants from those who served in Gallipoli. On 
the 20th June 1940’s day was held in Heywood, this event gets bigger each year. Flag 
raising ceremonies took place between Saturday 20th and Monday 22nd June and they were 
lowered on Monday 29th June. 

Royal British Legion Poppy Picnics

Eight poppy picnics took place across the borough on 21st June 2015. The events were run 
by friends of the parks associations with support from the Armed Forces team. 

NHS

We have recently started working with the NHS to look at a 12 month pilot programme to 
support veterans and families. We want to look at ways we can improve the service for 
veterans, e.g. educating GP’s and broadening their knowledge regarding veterans and the 
Armed Forces family. We also want to look at ways in which we can improve the information 
for veterans and their families. This could be something like production of an information 
pack on what is available within the area, charities, organisations, PTSD symptoms and 
what to do.

Remembering What We Remember 

All across the arts are creating a digital teaching resource pack. Entitled ‘Remembering 
What We Remember’, it will be designed to encourage cross generational further learning 
and to explore culturally diverse attitudes to commemoration. The pack will allow individuals 
and groups to take a digital tour across the borough researching the Armed Forces both past 
and present. This information can then be extended to other organisations to create work to 
add to the pack. 



 April 24, 2015

Remembering Private Michael McCormick (1877-1915)

Remembering the people of Littleborough who gave their lives in the World Wars

Littleborough History Centre is remembering the men from Littleborough who lost their lives 
in the First World War 100 years after their death.

 May 9, 2015 

Beacon lights the night sky as Rochdale remembers VE Day

A special beacon was lit in Rochdale on Friday during a service by Rochdale Cenotaph to 
commemorate the end of the Second World War.  Rochdale borough was one of 100 areas 
around the UK chosen to light a beacon to mark the 70th anniversary of Victory in Europe 
(VE) Day – when the Second World War in Europe came to an end.

 June 5, 2015

GMACF Endorses Rochdale Council Armed Forces Support

 June 6, 2015

Holcombe Moor Cadet Facility Visit

 June 19, 2015

Afternoon Tea with the mayor and Gallipoli Families.



 June 21, 2015

Naming of Memorial Walk in honour of RSM James Clarke VC

 June 27, 2015

 Rochdale Council wins National Award for Armed Forces Support

Rochdale Council have been recognised for introducing pioneering changes to better 
support armed forces personnel and their families back into civilian life.

At the 2015 North West Armed Forces Business Awards evening at the Imperial War 
Museum (north) Friday 26th June, Rochdale Council won the National Silver Award

 July 17, 2015

Information boards telling the story of Heywood’s WW1 Centenary commemoration project 
installed



 July 24, 2015

Historic England is considering Buersil and Balderstone War Memorial for addition to 
the List of Buildings of Special Architectural or Historic Interest

Buersil and Balderstone War Memorial, Junction of Platting Lane and Oldham Road, 
Balderstone, Lancashire

 July 25, 2015

Heywood WW1 Centenary commemorations dedication day

A dedication service to commemorate recent improvements to Heywood Cenotaph was held 
on Saturday. 

Four new stone flags have been installed by Heywood Township as part of the boroughs 
World War One Centenary commemorations.

Stone carved and painted flags of the Union flag, the White Ensign, RAF Ensign and the 
Red Ensign have been added to the original memorial, carved by Heywood Master 
Stonemason Harry Simpson of Urban Stone.










	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub-Committee
	Minutes

	6 Savings Proposals 2016-2017, 2017-2018
	7 Disposal of Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Disposal of Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, Rochdale
	Append. 2 for Disposal of Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, Rochdale

	8 Neighbourhood Planning - Application for a Neighbourhood Area & Forum
	Neighbourhood Planning - Application for a Neighbourhood Area & Forum enc. 1
	Neighbourhood Planning - Application for a Neighbourhood Area & Forum enc. 2

	9 TBA site update
	TBA site - an update enc. 1

	10 Armed Forces
	Appendix 1 - Armed Forces Update

	12 Misuse of Allotment Sites
	13 Smith Street Experimental Closure Order
	Smith Street Experimental Closure Order enc. 1
	Smith Street Experimental Closure Order enc. 2


